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PRESS: Akaku: Maui Community Television, Inc.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: .. .(gavel). .. Good morning, I'm Stacy...Councilmember Stacy Crivello, and
the meeting of the Housing, Human Services, and Transportation Committee will now come to
order. It is about 9:03 a.m. on Thursday, October 17, 2013. Before we begin, may I please
request that we all turn off or silence our cellphones or other noisemaking devices. Thank you,
Committee members, for being here. At this time Elle Cochran, Committee Vice-Chair, is
excused. Good morning Council Chair, Gladys Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning, Chair
CHAIR CRIVELLO: And Councilmember Bob Carroll, good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Councilmember Don Couch not here, excused. Councilmember Don Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Good morning, Chair
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Good morning. Councilmember, Mr. Mike Victorino.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning, Madam Chair
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Good morning. And good morning Vice-Chair Elle Cochran.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Good morning, Chair. Aloha.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. At this time, I'd like to introduce our Administration representatives.
Pleased to have with us this morning Jan Shishido, Deputy Director of Housing and Human
Concerns. And with her this morning is, from Deputy Corporate Counsel, Gary Murai.
MR. MURAI: Good morning, Madam Chair
MS. SHISHIDO: Good morning, Madam Chair
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Good morning And our diligent Committee Staff Clarita Balala, Committee
Secretary, Scott Jensen, Legislative Analyst, and Michele Yoshimura, Legislative Analyst.
Thank you. Members, we have three items on the agenda today, HHT-12, the Spay/Neuter
Incentive Program; HHT-6, regarding Animal Control; and HHT-13, concerning the Grants
Management Process. And with that being said, we may now start with public testimony. I'd
like to, first of all, connect with our District Offices. And assisting us this morning from the
Hana District is Dawn Lono.
MS. LONO: Good morning, Chair. This is Dawn Lono at the Hana office.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Good morning, Dawn. From our Lanai District office, Denise Fernandez.
MS. FERNANDEZ: Good morning, Chair. This is Denise Fernandez from Lanai.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Good morning. And good morning, Ella Alcon, from our Molokai District
Office.
MS. ALCON: Good morning, Chair. This is Ella Alcon on Molokai.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. For individuals who will be testifying in the Chamber, please sign up
at the desk located in the eighth floor lobby, just outside the Chamber door. If you will be
testifying from the remote testimony locations specified on the meeting agenda, please sign up
with the Council Staff at the specific location. Testimony will be limited to the items listed on
the agenda today. Pursuant to the Rules of the Council, each testifier will be allowed to testify
for up to three minutes per item, with one minute to conclude if requested. When testifying,
please state your name and the name of any organization you are representing. If you don't
mind, I'd like to check with our District offices. Hana, any testifiers?
.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. . .
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MS. LONO: The Hana office has no one waiting to testify
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. Lanai District office, anyone there to testify?
MS. FERNANDEZ: Lanai Office has no one waiting to testify.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: And Molokai District Office.
MS. ALCON: There's no one here on Molokai waiting to testify.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. At the time someone should sign up at your respective office, will
you e-mail our Staff so I can come back in with you. Thank you at this time. At this time, I'd
like to call up on our first testifier. And that's, her name is Diane Custer, and testifying on Item
HHT-12, HHT-6 and HHT-13. Diana, Diana Custer.
MS. CUSTER: Good morning, Council. This is my first time testifying. I'm a little nervous, so please
bear with me. Regarding HHT-12, SNIP, I am not specifically representing SPCA Maui, but I
am a volunteer for them and do work with them on the SNIP program currently. Please keep the
County Spay/Neuter Incentive SNIP Program as it is and has been for two decades. Please
provide SNIPs to the general public regardless of income. Thank you for your support to SPCA
Maui, who is now delivering the SNIP Program to the community with no administrative charge
to the County. SPCA Maui is passionate about spaying and neutering pet animals on Maui, and
we are honored to serve the community in this capacity. That concludes my testimony regarding
HHT-12 SNIP. Moving on to HHT-6, Animal Control. Please pass this bill. The bill is good for
animal control, prosecutors, judges, the animals, and our community. All will benefit by
improving our already very good animal codes. Properly cared for and restrained animals
increase neighborhood livability for all involved. Also, thank you to Corporation Counsel for
taking the time to improve many sections of the Code. The effort was well worth the
improvements to the dangerous dogs section especially. That concludes my portion on HHT-6,
Animal Control. Moving on to HHT-13, Grants Management Process. Reviewing the Grants
Management Process is a big subject and an important one. In preparation to review what is a
part of procurement, I would like to read some of the Hawaii Revised Statutes that offer wise
guidance to the spending of taxpayers' money. Please bear with me. As a career State and
County employee, the laws are good reference material. First the definitions of grant versus
contract per Hawaii Revised Statutes. Quote: HRS 103(d)-104, definitions. Contract means all
types of agreements regardless of what they may be called; for the procurement or disposal of
goods or services or for construction. Grant means the furnishing of assistance, whether
financial or otherwise to any person to support a program authorized by law. The term does not
include an award whose primary purpose is to procure an end product, whether in the form of
goods, services or construction. A contract resulting from such an award is not a grant, but a
procurement contract. Moving on. Next, our laws governing the manner in which a person who
is procuring should conduct themselves. And I wanna say that as both a State and a County
employee over the last 20 years, I have done a tremendous amount of procurement of all levels.
So it's something dear to my heart. HRS 103(d)-101, requirements of ethical public
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procurement. Number one, act as a fiduciary and trustee of public monies. Number two, remain
independent from any actual or prospective bidder, offerer, contractor or business. Number
three, act only in the public interest. Number four, abide by the statutes and administrative rules
relating to public procurement. Number five, identify and maximize efficiencies in the public
procurement process. Number six, encourage economic competition. This is very important.
Encourage economic competition by ensuring that all persons are afforded an equal opportunity
to compete in a fair and open market. I can't finish the rest of my talk because I'm done with my
time. But thank you very, very much for your consideration.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. Members, is there a need to have any part of the testimony
rephrased? Thank you. Our next testifier is Dawn Hall. Following Dawn Hall is Pam Wolf.
MS. HALL: Good morning, Council. My name is Dawn Hall. I am the Executive Director for Hawaii
Animal Rescue Foundation. Thank you for giving me the opportunity to speak to you today
regarding the various animal topics on the agenda. I'm gonna be short, 'cause I know you guys
have a long day. Regarding HHT-12, the SNIP Program, please keep this program as it has been
for the past 20-plus years. Please continue to provide SNIP vouchers to the general public
regardless of income. We appreciate your support of the SPCA Maui who delivers the SNIP
Program to the community with no administrative charge to the County. Their services have
been invaluable resource to not only our organization, but to the community as a whole. We
value their partnership greatly and look forward to working with them for years to come. The
HHT-6, Animal Control, this is a no-brainer on my end. Please pass this bill. It's good for
Animal Control Officers, prosecutors, judges, the animals and our communities. It's a win-win
for everyone involved. And lastly, HHT-13, Grants Management. The Grants Management
process is in need of review and reevaluation. There are many discrepancies between the way
business is currently done and the HRS. This is undoubtedly a very large project, but the Grants
Management handles millions of taxpayer dollars each year, and it should be accurately and
fairly managed for all. Thank you.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. Members, is there a need to have any part of the testimony
rephrased? If not, thank you. Pam Wolf, and following Pam is Peter Tierney.
MS. WOLF: Good morning. I'm Pam Wolf I'm with Save an Animal Organization. Thank you for
this opportunity. I would like to know where the donuts and coffee are though. I'm just here for
those. Actually, animals, as you know, are a big part of most of our lives. Most of us have cats
or dogs, or both, and they're basically a member of our family. And if there's a bill such as
HHT-6 in the process, we should totally go ahead and support it and anything similar to that. I
just wish you would really support that. Also, please support the SNIP Program as it is. SPCA
is doing a wonderful job, and they should be continued with their support. They should not be
made to go through more hoops, as the same with other small animal welfare groups. They're all
here to help animals, and the more hoops they have to jump through, the worse it is for
everybody. So please, please support them. And also regarding the grants, if, just because
someone's been here for over 10 years, does not make them always the better person to get the
grant. And if a grant is rigged just for one entity, it is not right. Basically, just please support all
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the small groups that are out there, everybody supporting animals. We all want the same thing.
So thank you, and have a good day.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Just a moment. Members, is there a need to have any part of the testimony
rephrased? Not. Thank you. Peter Tierney. Following Peter is Mike Moran.
MR. TIERNEY: Good morning. Thank you, Chair Crivello, for agreeing to hear this matter this
morning. And as I said when we met before, we're gonna make it brief and we're not gonna take
all day. I'm here as the Chairman of the Maui County Animal Coalition. We're a group of
14-plus organizations dedicated to helping Maui's animals. Each and every one of us support the
passage of HHT-6, and appreciate it moving forward. In the matter of HHT-12, I'm gonna speak
to you as a representative of SPCA Maui. We look forward to delivering the Maui County SNIP
Program, that's Spay/Neuter Incentive Program, to the County at no cost to the County, allowing
us to provide more services to more of Maui County's cats and dogs. On the matter of HHT-13,
clearly having been going through the process of receiving a grant, it's become evident to us that
the system in the way it is now is not working. If we could focus more attention on how money
is spent instead of how it's awarded, I think it would be a benefit to all of us in the County. And
that's all for today.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. Members, any questions or anything of the testimony that needs to be
rephrased? If not, thank you.
MR. TIERNEY: Thank you.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Mike Moran. Following Mike is Jocelyn Bouchard.
MR. MORAN: Good morning and aloha. Aloha, Chair Crivello -CHAIR CRIVELLO: Aloha.
MR. MORAN: --and Committee members. Thank you for scheduling this hearing. And also thanks to
Chair Baisa, who helped us craft this bill. I'm sorry, I should've said I'm starting off with HHT6. So I wanted to thank Chair Baisa, who helped us for years with this bill to get it crafted. My
name is Mike Moran, and I am testifying in strong support of HHT-6 as an individual who has a
passion for animal welfare. We have progressed a long way since we began this effort three
years ago. There are a number of other selfless guys to thank for assistance, but I do only have
three minutes. I profess no expertise, but simply follow those who do in both legal structure as
well as knowledge of animal welfare and control, and the ability to combine both. I ask you to
listen closely to their testimony. I have volunteered for the past two years to assist the Maui
County Animal Coalition, presently composed of 18 nonprofit animal welfare organizations,
some who will be or already have offered testimony today. By their very nature, being mostly
unfunded, all-volunteer organizations, all of their time is devoted to making a living and
devoting all other time to efforts of their nonprofits. Therefore, several of the smaller ones are
unable to attend and testify, but have offered me the privilege to name them as supporters of this
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bill. The following members of the Maui County Animal Coalition are in support: Friends of
Upcountry Dog Park, For Forgotten Felines, Hawaii Animal Rescue Foundation, HARF who
we've heard from, Save an Animal, who we have heard from, Last Resort Dog Rescue, Valley
Isle Animal Rescue, No Kill Maui and SPCA Maui, who just preceded me. In addition, a few
individuals in support who are colony caretakers presently or previously, and strong animal
advocates, and I hope I don't butcher these names too badly. I always know them by first names:
Mike Wilinsky, Cindy Texeira, Pamela Wolf, who we did hear from, and Laurie Pottish.
Finally, there have been countless scientific studies that indicate that humans who abuse and
neglect animals frequently move on to the same treatment of humans. We hear more and more
in our society about bullying. If you strongly take charge of this kind of negative action when
applied to animals, you can control it before it regresses to people. Mahalo. And I will move on
to the next item, HHT-12, the SNIP Program. It is my understanding that this County-funded
program has been in place for many years and administered by the Maui Humane Society. This
fiscal year, this task was charged to SPCA Maui partially because they offered to allocate all of
the funds to the program and not follow the prior practice of charging a 10 percent fee for this
administration. To a layman, it seems most practical to apply every dollar to having your dogs
and cats fixed, so doing so for 10 percent more the animals seems to be a no brainer. As the
contact person for the Maui County Animal Coalition, I was asked by SPCA Maui to allow the
County Housing and Human Concerns Department to view the past three months' meeting
agenda and notes of this coalition as part of processing the grant for the SNIP Program. Since I
have no vote for coalition actions, I inquired of the members if they would approve of this
action. Many of the more active members who attended almost all the meetings questioned why
what their representatives of their organizations stated in these meetings was relevant to this
process, and for what reason HHC made such a request. Of course I had no answer. Each then
continued to say that they believed getting and keeping the SNIP Program running was vital, so
while they objected to this unusual request, they voted to allow this action. To be clear, these are
not secret meetings. Each of you Council members have been invited to attend a meeting on the
second Tuesday of each month. Councilmember Couch has sent one of his EAs to attend
numerous meetings in spite of the fact that she tried to do so at our very first meeting and was
asked to leave by a paid facilitator. Obviously, this lady has perseverance. She came back. In
addition, we have invited media and one meeting was reported in the local newspaper. We've
had numerous vests including State Representative Kaniela Ing, officials from the Humane
Society of the United States, and in fact the HHC Director and the Grants Manager attended as
invitees. So it is still curious why this Department feels the agenda and meeting notes are
relevant to the SNIP Program Grant. Yet to my knowledge, SPCA Maui has not been approved
for the grant, but I hope the Department will soon, will do so very soon since SPCA Maui has
increasingly offered more no-cost, low-cost fixes with clinics now covering every weekend.
Let's start getting them the grant money so they can pay for the operating veterinarians for the
already performed operations and future ones as well. We all see the value in reducing the
number of unwanted domestic animals and the unquestioned value of birth control. Okay. I will
be briefer on the third item, a sigh of relief, HHT-13, Grants Management Process. This, of
course, is a huge topic. And I am unclear if you're only looking at the process concerning
animals. Is today the day for the creatures who have no voice and no vote, or the entire process?
I think most of Maui is aware of the Wailuku Main Street situation highlighting the need for
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strong oversight of what happens with taxpayers' money. Just trying to examine one aspect, I
think the reports in the daily paper the past few weeks which frequently mention Valley Isle
Animal Rescue being called out by the Maui Police Department from 5:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m. for
animal related emergencies, while the contract in MHS covers the lesser hours of the clock in the
daytime, are they equally compensated with taxpayer money? Is the grants process equitable? I
hope this will be part of your Committee consideration this morning. Mahalo.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you, Mr. Moran. Members, any questions or for the...Chair Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair Just a quick question. Mr. Moran, do I understand
correctly that you're saying that SPCA has not received a grant yet?
MR. MORAN: Of course, I don't speak for them. The last I had heard, they were still going through
the process. The last contact I had was when they asked about getting these documents from the
coalition. And I said well, what is this for, and they said well, we're still going through the
grants process, so I can't say exactly what the status is for them.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. I'll check. Thank you.
MR. MORAN: Thank you.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. And then after we're done with testimony, Department will be
available for, in response to those questions.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Jocelyn Bouchard testifying on Item HHT-6. Following Jocelyn is Debbie Redd.
MS. BOUCHARD: Good morning and aloha, Committee Chair Crivello and Committee members. My
name is Jocelyn Bouchard and I am honored and privileged to be the CEO for the Maui Humane
Society. I wanna thank you for this opportunity to provide testimony this morning. I also wanna
thank Council Chair Baisa for her considerable time and efforts on behalf of this bill, and for
Corp. Counsel, and to Chair Crivello for getting this on the agenda. Mahalo for that. We
absolutely support the majority of this bill and it is our hope that we can get it passed out of
Committee today. However, we do wanna reiterate our concerns about the mandatory deeming
of a dog under the existing definitions of bodily injury and, if you agree, present a simple one
word fix to address the concern. We believe it is most efficient to allow our Officers to have the
discrepancy to make this determination based on the totality of the evidence. Some of our staff
are gonna come up and share some of the specific examples of the potential impact both on the
dogs, their owners and the shelter. But I also wanted to point out the added burden to the Animal
Control Board. The Animal Control Board, as you may or may not know, is made up of
volunteers from the community that may or may not have any expertise in animal-related issues.
When a dog is deemed dangerous, the owner of that dog has three main options: surrender their
dog to the Humane Society, comply with the deeming or appeal to the Animal Control Board.
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The Animal Control Board meets here at the County. They may never have the chance to meet
the dog or dogs in question, visit the site or personally interview all the witnesses. For example,
a lot of times, there are tourists involved, and by the time a meeting is scheduled, those tourists
may have returned to the mainland. They are still gonna rely on us to give them those details, so
if we're not actually supporting that deeming based on the totality, it just kind of seems like a
strange dynamic and that we're kinda move the cart before the horse if you will. And just to give
you an idea, last year about 86 dogs would've been impacted by this that were cited for bites
rather than deemed dangerous. And those would've all been deemed dangerous. Another
number, I believe there was 13 or 14 dogs that were to be deemed dangerous. Twelve of those
were surrendered to the Humane Society, so to kind of give you an idea of what people do when
their dogs are deemed. So our Officer, some of our staff are here to talk about the specific
examples as I said, but we do support the passing of this bill, and again the quick fix to restore
our Officers' ability to use their training and significant years of experience is simply to change
the word "shall" to "may", and reinstall that discrepancy we currently have. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. Council Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you. What section are you talking about?
MS. BOUCHARD: It's on Page 8 at the very bottom. I don't have, I should've brought the copy of the
bill up here. Hang on.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: I can ask Corp. Counsel Gary Murai to make that reference.
MR. MURAI: That's 6.04.046.
MS. BOUCHARD: Yes, right at the bottom of Page 8. And so where it says one, an Enforcement or
Animal Control...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yes, I see it. I see it
MS. BOUCHARD: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you. Thank you very much.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Any further comments or questions for the testifier? If not, thank you,
Ms. Bouchard.
MS. BOUCHARD: Thank you.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Debbie Redd. Following Debbie is Mani White, testifying on HHT-6.
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MS. REDD: Good morning, Chair Crivello and Council members. I'm not used to testifying. I'm a
little nervous again. I just would like to thank you guys for all your hard work on the bill, the
HHT-6. My name is Deborah Redd. I've worked at the Humane Society for 20 years in the
Animal Control field, and I actually would like to believe I was a part of this law, and you guys
did an awesome job. But as our CEO brought up, and I wanted this word changed originally. I
wanted the "may" to be changed to "shall", but now I see how it is actually something that will
make our jobs very hard, and it doesn't seem fair to the public to do this. I have a couple
examples that I wanted to talk about, but what we're saying is if we shall deem a dog dangerous
for causing bodily injury to a person, this is some of the things that I want you to keep in mind
You know, what if someone is breaking into my home and my dog protects me, and injures this
person? It's not fair to deem that dog dangerous because of a result of a violation, as well as
what if I'm walking my dog down the street and somebody assaults me and my dog defends me?
They're beating me up and my dog jumps up and bites them. I don't think it's fair to deem the
dog dangerous for that. I believe that, actually me and Officer White, we have deemed several,
several dogs. It's not an easy thing, and we take it very personal, not personal but we do our best
to make sure we're fair. These are a couple of real life cases where, if the word "shall" remains
in the law, we would have to deem these dogs dangerous. There was a man in Kahului. He was
doing community service, and he actually walked onto somebody's property, private property,
right past a beware of dog sign, and got bit by their tied dog. Now the way the law is right now
worded, any bodily injury, physical pain, a dog could be deemed dangerous. That dog would
have to be deemed dangerous. I believe that we actually did cite for the bite and it was thrown
out. There was another one, I'll try to make this quick. There was a guy that was walking by
somebody's house in Haiku and he got bit, he says through the fencing, by that owner's dog.
When I went out to investigate, the fencing was on a boundary about 10 to 20 feet from the road.
How this man got bit through the fencing, he was probably up overlooking at something in the
yard, I don't know. Anyways, I'm running out of time. So if you can, please reconsider
changing that one word or the definition of what the injury is. I would appreciate it. Thank you.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. Any comments or...Chair
.
Baisa.
COLTNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Deborah, for being here. I just want you and the
Members to know that what is before the Committee is a result of many, many meetings and a
final agreement that we would submit the ordinance and that everybody was okay with it. It's
probably a good idea that time has passed because, you know, when time passes, sometimes you
have second thoughts and you think about it and say maybe what we agreed to wasn't so hot.
And so yes, it is a change, but that's the reason. But we had all agreed when this was submitted,
you all had agreed, all the people that I've been working with trying to bring them together so we
could support an ordinance. But apparently, since then, people have had time to think. So I will
ask the Members to consider the change. Thank you.
MS. REDD: Thank you very much.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. Any further questions or comments for the testifier? Thank you. I'm
son y.
-
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Do we have, I guess we have one more Officer.
MS. REDD: No. Go ahead. I'm sorry. I'm just nervous.
COLTNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh no. In your testimony, you're talking about that section Dog
Regulations 6.04.046. You happened to read that provision under letter C where it says while off
the owner's property, behave in a manner that a reasonable person would believe poses an
imminent threat of bodily injury to one or more persons.
MS. REDD: Yes. That...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I'm just, I'm gonna ask you straight up, what does that mean to you?
MS. REDD: That's actually very, thank you, because I had a case like this just yesterday. There's three
large breed dogs in a yard. Prior we had a report of one of them being loose trying to attack a
rabbit. There was a Police Officer there, he said the dog charged him. The new complaint was
there was a gardener. He was in the yard, he was gardening, and the dogs actually tried to come
underneath the fence and attack him. One of the dogs' head came through. There was one of the
dogs that his body up to his tail came through. So that would be definitely a perceived threat of
imminent attack. I had prior, actually wanted this law changed because one of my cases that got
thrown out, there was a dog that constantly terrorized this family. And on the occasion where I
decided this is it, you know, the dog's been reported loose. They're afraid. I need to protect this
family. I deemed the dog dangerous because it had broken loose and it was trying to attack them
through their screen door, their sliding glass screen door, and they shut the door. The person that
owned the dog actually obtained a lawyer and they threw it out, because they said well, there was
no imminent threat because there is a glass between the person and the dog. But had they not
have shut the door quick enough, it could've came in and got them. So a perceived imminent
threat is when somebody doesn't even get hurt, and I'm okay with deeming a dog on that
regarding the circumstances. I think we need a little discretion.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah. I have little issues with that section. It seems to me that it
could be interpreted as a one-time incident or something more sufficient as a continuous acts that
would justify the dog being deemed dangerous -MS. REDD: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --under that section.
MS. REDD: I think continuous acts -COLTNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Continuous acts.
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MS REDD: --would be good. But you've gotta be careful because this was where I'm telling you about
these dogs that went after the gardener, they have a family. They have like 12 kids in the yard.
These are large breed, big mouth dogs, American Bulldog, you know, I don't wanna name
breeds specific, but if I don't recognize that danger, and one of those kids gets mauled or killed, I
don't feel like I'm doing my job. So that's, the imminent threat I think there should be some
discretion. It shouldn't be, you know, just a dog barking or growling at somebody. It should be
hey, it's big or it's done it before, and a reasonable person would believe it could happen. That
fence is flimsy. It could jump up, you know.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. Any more comments or questions for the testifier? If not, thank you.
Next testifier on HHT-6, Mani White. Following Mani White is Jamie Fitzpatrick.
MS. WHITE: Good morning, Chair Crivello and Council members. I am Mani White, member of the
Maui Humane Society for 14 years going into 15. So I've had some experience out here on the
field also. And I am thankful that the wording is being changed in many respects also for this
new bill. But I also have cases that I've been on that were not severe enough to be seen for me
to deem. And guess who holds the trophy for the most deemed dogs in the County? Officer
White from the Maui Humane Society. I have examples of my own where I have deemed dogs
in their own yard for fighting with each other. But there were again priors that myself and other
Police Officers went to the house to repair, put fence lines back up, and the dogs got out and they
were aggressive towards neighbors. Eventually the dogs got in fights within themselves in their
own yard where I had to call MPD up to taze one of them so that I could pull the dogs away from
each other to stop the fight. I deemed those, all three dogs in that yard, because they were all
involved. The person went to the board and the board held the deeming But it was again a
sequence of things that happened. It wasn't a first. It was continual things. I also have someone
that was bitten at a beach when they were washing off their dog's paws, and a person came up to
turn the shower on for the person washing, had a wet suit on. It scared the dog. The person got
bit on the arm, but it was not, again, a severe bite. It did rip that wet suit, but did not do a severe
bite. Citation was issued. The person still had to go to court for that bite, but I did not feel it was
deeming purposes. I've got several of those, and people who make a complaint to us.. .let me
back up just a little bit. On those people, which I had two, first bite I issued the citations, they
had to go to court. I suggested that they use what is called a protective dog muzzle on the dog
that actually is deemed. And so I brought visuals in of types of muzzles that are out there for
purchase for people to protect themselves and their dogs if there is any threat of a bite. There are
muzzles where a dog can pant and breathe, and there are cloth muzzles in various different sizes
available to people if they wish to use these in protection of what their dog might do out in the
public or possibly in their own yard if they have company and a party, just examples. Several
cases that we have were a person called to report a family member that had a dog that tried to
attack her small dog—try to get through this one—that would seem to be aggressive towards the
daughter. The caller did not want to cause problems and wanted us to speak with the owner
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about needing to socialize her dog. I bring this up because this is the kind of a case that we
would deem a dog dangerous if it had caused any injury, even though the caller only wanted us
to talk to someone. Again, a lot of this to us, instead of deeming, is education which we feel is
huge. Education I think makes steps in the right direction over deeming, or we could be deeming
185 dogs dangerous. And we know that 100 of those people are gonna ask for a hearing with the
Dangerous Dog Board.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. Members, is there a need...? Council Guzman, then after that
Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair Mine is only a comment. I just wanted to thank
you, Officer White. Fourteen years ago we had many cases together, and I'm glad to see that
you're still on the force and you're still doing a good job. Those dangerous dog cases were very
difficult to prove, and you were persistent in some of those, and some of them, they fell through
the loop. And hopefully this will take care of it. We'll tinker with it a little bit more to make
sure that your job is maybe more efficient. Thank you.
MS. WHITE: Thank you.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. Mr. White.
MR. WHITE: Thank you, Chair And thank you, Mani, for what you do. I don't see, in the bill, any
reference to changes in the schedule of fines or that type of action. Do you feel that the existing
schedule of fines for bad acts is sufficient, or should we be looking at...
MS. WHITE: We've been instructed on fines to send everybody to court except for dog licenses on the
violation of current Codes. So if it's a bite and it's, even a minor bite, we'll still send them to
court with provisions that that person that witnessed it is willing to go to court and will testify.
But we're finding a lot of times that these people that testify didn't want to go to court. They
just wanted us to talk to people. But they didn't wanna go to court. And, you know, we can
subpoena them, but we do find a lot of that, wait, we just wanted you to talk to them. That was
all. We don't want them, any harm to come to them or their dog. They just need to be educated.
Everything goes to court now, which I'm happy. I'm very happy. And I'm very pleased at this
revision and wanting the bill to go through with, I will say also, the word "shall" to be removed
and leave the word "may" in the description.
MR. WHITE: Okay. Great. Thank you.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. Any further questions or any part of the testimony to be rephrased?
Yes, Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I have one more follow-up. Officer White, has the numbers of
charges or convictions increased since, let's say, let's just call it 10 years ago? From 10 years
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ago to the present time, has there been more charging of dangerous dogs and has there been
more convictions?
MS. WHITE: More complaints have come in to us at the Humane Society. More convictions of them I
don't have the numbers.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Cases filed through the office.
MS. WHITE: Yes. We have more case files.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Has there been an increase from...
MS. WHITE: From 10 years ago, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. Yes, Ms. Cochran.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Aloha. Thank you for being here, and for doing what
you do. Just curious if any of these cases ever go through mediation. Do you know? You
mentioned that some say no, we don't wanna do the court thing So has there ever, and they
want education type of action versus litigation I guess, or court.
MS. WHITE: Mediation is only at their own choice on these sorts of things They have the choice of
going to the Board. But in a dangerous dog deeming, there is not a mediation set up.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Oh, Councilman Victorino, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's okay, Chair That's not a problem. I wanted to tack on to
what my colleagues were asking about. Do you find yourself being called in more often at
these various cases that are going to court? You know, like the police, you guys are called in
to report what you've seen and heard and all that. So do you find more of your time being
court attended?
MS. WHITE: Actually, because of our written testimonies in these cases, we have not been subpoenaed.
It is the dog owner and the victims that are being subpoenaed.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So you guys don't have to attend the court hearing?
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MS. WHITE: We can be, but they have not been subpoenaing us.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. WHITE: We're sending in our reports and our ...(inaudible)...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Strictly the complainant and or injured parties.
MS. WHITE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And just to finish that up, once they get to that point, has
there been a reluctance once, you know, they're called in, subpoenaed? Do you find them
getting a little upset and not...saying we didn't want, like you mentioned earlier, we didn't
want this. We just wanted education.
MS. WHITE: After the deeming or before the deeming?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
MS. WHITE: After the deeming I'd say, even if they've gone before a board and a board has held our
deeming, we do follow-ups with these folks, but there isn't much communication that much.
With some, but some I've got plenty of communication with. Some agree with me and know
that I am doing my job, following up with the law. Communication is A-okay with me with
dogs, like people I've deemed dangerous. It's more the other...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Again what I'm hearing from you, and I've heard from others is,
you know, once a complaint is made, it's more education and also the consequences may help
reduce some of this, but it doesn't seem to happen. Not that you don't put the effort in, it's
sometimes just the reluctance on others to push it forward.
MS. WHITE: Well, I would say even particularly on the two that I suggested these muzzles, they went
for the muzzles. Great people, it happened, it was just something that happened. And they're
sticking with the muzzles. If we've got anything that we have donated to the shelter, we've
offered them to people, and one of them was one of these muzzles I have here. And they
continually use that. And they had the cloth one, but they went to the basket one because the
dog could breathe more. Safety for them, safety for their dog, safety out in the public. So a lot
of times, it has worked more so to educate and change things without the deeming.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. So you think the change to "shall" and "may", or
vice versa, would be much more applicable for what you're...
MS. WHITE: Always in our case, depends on the situation and the severity of what happened.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. Thank you. Before Jamie Fitzpatrick would come up, I'd like to
check in with our District Offices. Our Hana District, do you have any testifiers?
MS. LONO: The Hana Office has no one waiting to testify.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. Our Lanai District Office, any testifiers?
MS. FERNANDEZ: Lanai Office has no one waiting to testify.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. And our Molokai District Office, any testifiers?
MS. ALCON: No one here on Molokai waiting to testify.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. Jamie Fitzpatrick, and following Jamie is Jon T. Inano, Jr.
MS. FITZPATRICK: Good morning, Chair Crivello and Committee members. Thank you so much for
the opportunity to come and speak this morning. And thank you so much for hearing this bill.
As we've said, the Maui Humane Society is very supportive of this bill. We like a lot of the
changes that are in it. The few specific changes that we've pointed out, changing the "shall" to
"may" in the section mentioned before, would allow our Officers the leeway to take into
consideration the specifics of the case, that would allow us to better serve our community in a
supportive way, provide the education and support to help our community more. So I was going
to talk about if the word "shall" stays in and our Officers are then required to deem dogs
dangerous who cause bodily injury, which does include causing physical pain. So it could be a
minor infraction. If those dogs are required to be deemed dangerous, there are very specific
guidelines in the ordinance about the housing and care for dogs who are deemed. And those are
very important guidelines to have in there to protect our community, keep our people and our
pets safe. But they're not necessarily designed for those more minor infractions that those
controls would be overkill So a minor infraction that Jon has a couple more examples he'll
share when he gets up here, where it will seem a little over the top to enforce those on some of
the more minor cases that we might see. The repercussions of a dog being deemed dangerous, as
our CEO explained, were to appeal that decision, to comply with those regulations or to
surrender and relinquish the pet. The relinquishment aspect is what would hit the shelter. The
additional dogs that would've been deemed dangerous over the last year, a significant portion of
them would likely have been surrendered due to the owner's inability to comply with the
stringent guidelines for maintaining a dangerous dog in their home. That, again, overburdens a
shelter who's already trying to find homes for many wonderful dogs in our community as it is.
So if we're able to update that lingo from "shall" to "may", allowing our Officers to use their
discretion and look at the individual circumstances of those individual cases, we believe that will
better serve our community and allow dogs with minor infractions to remain in their homes if
they can be managed appropriately, and give us the opportunity to educate and support our
community, which we see as a really important role. Thank you.
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CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. Members, is there a need to have any part of the testimony
rephrased? Any comments or questions? If not, thank you. Mr. Inano followed by Mr. Dennis
Burns.
MR. INANO: Good morning, Council. Thank you, Madam Chairperson, for hearing us today. I'm Jon
Inano. I've worked at the Maui Humane Society for about 10 years now. We're asking that you
consider changing, just like everyone else, "shall" to "may" in this new bill to give us discretion.
We deal, we've dealt with 181 dog attacks last year. That would be 181 dogs we'd have to deem
dangerous. On the ratio that people turn in dogs we deem dangerous to keeping them, that would
be hundreds of dogs that would be turned in. I just wanna give you two cases that we dealt with
recently. One, where a lady was sure that she was attacked by a puppy. She tripped and stubbed
her toe. We issued a citation because she honestly felt that the puppy, the six-week old puppy,
attacked her. So we issued the citation because there was injury. We would have to have
deemed that six year, six-week old puppy dangerous because bodily harm was found. The other
case, there was two young children walking their 14-pound Maltese down the road. One of
them, one of the children lost the dog. It ran out and bit an elderly male who never called us,
made no contact with us. He did however go to the hospital to have his puncture looked at. The
clinic called us, so we went out and investigated just like we always do. Upon talking to him, he
had no desire for any of it to be documented, but because we had received that call, we did. So
this 14-pound Maltese would have to be deemed dangerous if we don't change that "may", or
that "shall" to "may". Thank you.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. Any questions or comments? Councilman Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And thank you, Jon, for being here. So you're saying by having,
by not having discretion, let's say we kept "shall" there, right, that hundreds of dogs may be
deemed. Because you said you had 180 direct dog attacks reported.
MR. INANO: Correct, 181.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: A hundred and eighty-one. Okay. Excuse me. Sorry, I missed
the one part. Okay. But there were many, many more dog incidents that really wasn't deemed
an attack.
MR. INANO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And so now, by having "shall", those would probably have to be
put under as an attack.
MR. INANO: Correct. I mean, any time we deal with "shall", we generally do exactly as the law
instructs.

HOUSING, HUMAN SERVICES, AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

October 17, 2013

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: As mandated in the ordinance. So you're saying, without this
change, it could be very detrimental, not only to us, the County and you guys, but the dog owners
and like the six-week-old puppy.
MR. INANO: Absolutely. I mean, hundreds of people would be, would have to take time out to go to
court, they would have to take time out to do a dangerous dog hearing. And honestly, I would
imagine hundreds of people wouldn't, they wouldn't feel the need, they wouldn't bother, because
it's just, you know, we're asking them to go to court, to go before a Dangerous Dog Board
because they're, you know, even something as simple as someone sticks their hand through their
fence. That dog bites them, well now that dog is dangerous under this new, the new proposed...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well thank you. I think you made that perfectly clear. And also
you've made the point, I think some of you made the point that then dog ownership may become
a premium. More and more people will resist owning any type of dog just because of the word
"shall".
MR. INANO: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you for that clarification. Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you.
MR. INANO: Thank you.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Members...thank you. Mr. Burns testifying on HHT-12 and HHT-6.
MR. BURNS: Good morning, everybody. Chairperson, Council, thank you very much for allowing me
to come up. My name is Dennis Burns. I'm from Valley Isle Animal Rescue. We've been
doing emergency animal rescue for since mid-2010 in the evenings. You know, since the last
time we have seen you guys, we've done calls from halfway down to Hana, to Napili, a couple of
calls in Lahaina, Makena. We go where we're needed. You know, we've recently had a dog that
was hit very badly in Wailuku. We were able to save him, we were able to go on that call where
the tragedy with the house that burned down last week. Went and we were able to help them get
those dogs. You know, we're just trying to do the best, and thank you for the thought of the
allocation for the money for Valley Isle, as we are now going through the grant process
ourselves. We'd like to say to keep the SNIP certificate the way it is, because it truly affords the
public who cannot afford spay and neuter the opportunity to do so, which is gonna help cut the
population of too many down. You know, SPCA has been doing a wonderful job since they've
started, and they've helped many, many. And for them to be able to continue to do so is a
blessing. Yeah, and we'd like to pass the bill. You know, that's a good thing. It's gonna help
all law enforcements from judges to the AC0s, you know, and it's for the better of Maui, the
animals and the County. You know, and we just wanna thank you very much for our time and,
you know, try to do more for Maui and Maui County and the animals and law enforcement and
everybody who needs it. Thank you.
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CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you, Mr. Burns. Members, any comments, questions for Mr. Burns? If
not. Thank you, Mr. Burns. Is there anyone else, anyone in the gallery who would like to
testify? If so, please identify yourself to the appropriate Staff and proceed to the podium. Or if
there's anyone at the District Offices who would like to testify, so please identify yourself at the
District Office. I'm going to just do one more check with our District Offices just in case. Hana,
any additional testifiers?
MS. LONO: The Ham office has no one waiting to testify, Chair
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. Lanai, any additional testifiers?
MS. FERNANDEZ: There is no one waiting to testify on Lanai.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. Any additional testifiers from Molokai?
MS. ALCON: There's no one on Molokai waiting to testify.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. Members, as there are no further individuals in the Council Chamber
or District Offices wishing to testify, without objection, I will now close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
. • .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
CHAIR CRIVELLO: We will go on to our agenda or if you want to take a brief recess.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I'd rather go on.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. Okay. Before you, Members, you have the...your agenda. And the
agenda item we will address right now is HHT-12, Spay/Neuter Incentive Program, or what we
call SNIP. At this time, I'd like to recognize Councilmember Don Couch, as well as our
non-voting member, Mr. White. Thank you. The Committee is in receipt of County
Communication 13-28[sic], from Councilmember Michael P. Victorino, relating to the Maui
County Spay/Neuter Incentive Program, or what we call SNIP, and a related grant application by
the Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals (SPCA) Maui. I will now open the floor.
I'm sorry. I will allow the Department of Housing and Human Concerns to make comments if
you have any, and would you introduce your staff? Thank you.

ITEM NO. 12: SPAY/NEUTER INCENTIVE PROGRAM (SNIP) (CC 13-298)
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MS. SHISHIDO: Good morning, Chair Crivello and Council members. I'm Jan Shishido, Deputy
Director of Department of Housing and Human Concerns. And I'd like to introduce, here with
me, is Rudy Esquer. He is our Grants Manager for Grants Management Division.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Do you have any comments to make on any of the item that's before us?
MS. SHISHIDO: Just one comment in regards to the grant itself. Just letting you know it is going, is in
I believe in Corporation Counsel at this time. It's in process. It's on review.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Oh. So the inquiry regarding the grants drawdown for the SPCA is in process,
and now, if I understand you right, it's with the Corp. Counsel to finalize the necessary legal. I
will now open the floor for discussion or questions for the Department or in reference to our item
that's before us. Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Madam Chair. And part of the reason for this is
because they came to me, oh about a month ago, a month and a half ago, with a laundry list of
things that they needed to do. And one of the big concerns, or one of their problems was that
now they needed to have each and every veterinarian listed and had to be approved. And the
payment, or the voucher would have to go directly to the veterinarian and not to the public
member. And so as I read here, the vouchers for male cats was 15, female cats 25, male dogs 25,
and female dogs 50, for which now my understanding, because of this process, they have not
been paid over, since they just started, since they were awarded that opportunity. And secondly,
that this now puts an unfair burden on them to process all of this, where as it was in the past, you
get the voucher, you take it to the veterinarian. If he charges you $60, you pay the difference.
They cover the 25 and you pay the difference, whatever it might be, yeah, because it had
limitations. And it still does if I'm correct. So if Ms. Shishido could, you could explain why the
change, first of all and, you know, from what my perspective and their explanation to me, it
makes it more cumbersome. They're not, they don't have any service fee. They don't have
staff. Everything is kind of voluntary. So could you explain the necessary change in this area.
MS. SHISHIDO: I think I'll defer it to Rudy.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Rudy, that's fine.
MS. SHISHIDO: And basically it's through grant process, through the grant process.
MR. ESQUER: Okay. First of all, I was under the impression that we weren't gonna be talking about
one specific grant, but that we were gonna be talking about the grants process.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: This is for Item HHT-12.
MR. ESQUER: I know, but the reason I bring that up because this goes further than that, or deeper than
that. So I'll address your question, but really it's just the tip of the iceberg. So I would hope that
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we'd be able to talk about some of the deeper issues that are involved in this particular
application as well as many others. So to answer your question, there really wasn't any intent or
any reason for change in any of the ways or activities that the program is administered. That
wasn't the issue or the problem that was the center of that question. So there's, this really
doesn't have anything to do with how the program is administered.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I think, I find it a little difficult because we're talking
about A and then you have the other one which kind of ...(inaudible)... about grants in general
which, you know, my specific was because this program is being impaired and slowed down, in
fact almost coming to a halt because they're not getting paid. Have they been paid in any of, for
this fiscal year, have they been paid for any of the work done?
MR. ESQUER: No. The grant has not been fully executed yet.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTOR1NO: Okay. So that's another problem. Here we are in October and,
you know, we start July, and we're already four months into the grant period. And the work
continues. They're out there doing this with the understanding that yes, I'm going to get the
grant. Now if we gotta talk about the grants, Madam Chair, then I'll ask to defer this to the end
of the calendar, if that's all right with my Members and really go talk about the grants, because
again, I want specific answers, but if you're saying, you know, you were coming prepared to talk
about the grant program in general -CHAIR CRIVELLO: The grant process as a whole.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --yeah, the whole process as a whole, you know, Madam Chair, I
don't know if we wanna delve deep into this until we understand the process, and then maybe
it'll be much clearer to all of us here.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: I appreciate we doing it that way, if it's okay with Members.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: There's no objections. Well Madam Chair has to decide, not me.
I'm just asking.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. I would like to have this...Chair Baisa, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I realize that, you know, you're, as a Committee Chair, have the
right to, you know, move your agenda around. I'm just wondering, we don't...a County
attorney. Is that okay? Because this is listed under Item 12, and can we take it under Item 13.
Can we just move that?
MR. MURAI: I'm sorry, Mrs. Baisa, could you repeat your question?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. It's being suggested, we have an item, HHT-12, about the
Spay/Neuter Incentive Program. That's how it's listed on the agenda. We also have an item,
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HHT-13, which is the Grants Management Process. It's being suggested that we take 12 and
actually handle it under 13 procedurally.
MR. MURAI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, that is.. .point of order. That is not what I'm asking.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What are you saying?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I am saying that we defer this to the end and let Mister...Rudy, do
his thing on 13 and maybe it might be much more clearer when we go to 12 because he's saying
he wants to bring the whole process.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Excuse me. I understand it that way and in regards to your particular inquiry -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's correct.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: --is what that has to do...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So we're deferring it to the end of calendar.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: His question -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's clear.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: --his question or inquiry as far as the grant application.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Deferring it to end of calendar I have no question. I wasn't exactly clear
as to what was being suggested. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: My apologies, Madam Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: My apologies.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. Any further discussions or do we have any other discussions in
regards to the Spay/Neuter Incentive Program?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Not at this time, but certainly later.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Later. Later.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Yes. Okay. So I will otherwise defer until the end of this agenda.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No objections.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. I would like to now address our HHT-6, Animal Control. The
Committee is in receipt of County Communication 12-201, from Councilmember, Council Chair
Gladys Baisa, transmitting a proposed bill entitled A Bill for an Ordinance Amending Chapter
6.04, Maui County Code, Relating to Animal Control. Members, this proposed bill was referred
to the Council by Chair Baisa, and I'd like to give her the opportunity to give some introductory
remarks regarding this bill. Chair Baisa.
ITEM NO. 6: ANIMAL CONTROL (CC 12-201)

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. Thank you very, very much for putting
this on today's agenda. We can see that the transmittal was over a year ago. And I know that the
people that worked really hard on this have been really anxious, and I've been approached many
times by them to say well, what happened to all that work. So thank you very much. This bill
before us is a result of much community input, much work. The Humane Society and the Maui
County Animal Coalition worked very, very hard on this. And we had many, many meetings.
Mr. Ueoka, Attorney Ueoka, who I believe was in the audience, I don't know if he still is,
anyway facilitated many meetings, looked at many drafts. And there were many, many meetings
and a lot of discussion, because, as you can see already from the testimony, how we care for our
animals in Maui County is a subject that creates a lot of passion. Each of us has a favorite
animal and, you know, we think about that when we look at laws like this. And we wanna make
sure that we're treating our animals with the very best care we can give them, and do what's fair
to all of our community, and that we're keeping everybody safe. And anyway, there was a lot of
talk, a lot of back and forth, a lot of drafts. And finally, finally it was agreed that we had a draft
that everybody could buy into and at that point--I had facilitated some of these meetings--I was
willing to move it forward. I told them until you folks come to some kind of agreement, I'm not
going to put this forward, because we don't wanna spend weeks in Council trying to decide, you
know, the wording. And it was a little bit of a surprise today that we do have a change in
wording, but I understand. It's been a year. And I think people have had time to think about it,
and have thought of the what if s, and maybe it's not a bad idea when we're gonna do an
ordinance that we think about all the what ifs. And after listening to all the testimony, I totally
agree that I think that word should probably be changed from "shall" to "may". So that's
essentially how this came about. It's a work of many, many people and many animal groups.
And so I'm privileged to put it forward, and I hope that my Members will support it. And I
certainly would like to also support the change. Thank you.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you, Chair Baisa. Department, Ms. Shishido, any comments?
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MS. SHISHIDO: No comments.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. Members, we're open for discussions or questions. Council...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I'll allow Mr. Guzman to proceed. No, no, go ahead. You
had a couple of things. You and I talking about the same thing, so I'll allow him to go first.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair Just a few minor questions. Let me clarify the
dangerous dog penalties is a petty misdemeanor? To Corporation Counsel, that would be my
question, which is a jailable offense?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you. I'm not, I'm not a prosecutor. I'm not 100 percent sure what petty
misdemeanor. I believe the law says right now a fine of is it 30 days and $1000.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thirty days jail, $1000 fine.
MR. UEOKA: Yeah. But I'm not 100 percent confident on what a petty misdemeanor maxes are or
anything, so I don't wanna say.
COLTNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: But 30 days jail, $1000 fine.
MR. UEOKA: That is my understanding, yes.
COLTNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. On number three, Chair, Page 3, under the definition of
Animal Control, it says Animal Control means the organization contracted. Are we always
gonna have an organization in the future that will be contracted to do this work? Or at some
point, is our system going to change to an entity that's probably government, public, private, I
don't know. I just questioning whether it needs to be an organization contracted.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Mr. Ueoka, can you...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Would it be a voluntary, you know, group, or could it be done by the,
a government agency or entity, or a branch of the government at some point? Under the
definition of Animal Control.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Mr. Ueoka.
MR. UEOKA: Yes, it could be by a voluntary group or it's up to you folks if you wanted to create
another Division or Department of Animal Control as a County body. Right now it is not, and I
believe historically it has never been like the County itself doing it. I think on Lanai and
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Molokai we have, but I could be wrong. I don't know if historically, but the State law allows the
counties to contract for this. That's why we have the word contract in there.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: But does this preclude...I'm sorry, Chair.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Does this preclude MPD Officers from deeming a dog dangerous
under the probable cause section, I believe in the, I'm sorry, under 6.04.046.
MR. UEOKA: I believe it says an enforcement or Animal Control Officer there. So enforcement would
be law enforcement.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. So the definition of Animal Control, it can be expanded. We
can expand it from an organization contracted and another entity of enforcement or...I'm just
trying to expand it a little more general than narrowing it down to just an organization
contracted. Do you see where I'm going with that?
MR. UEOKA: I believe it's broad enough as is because I think Enforcement Officers can cite right now
for dangerous dogs. Animal Control, we used it more as like a term of art in here. It's defined.
And we actually, it used to read humane society.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, I saw that.
MR. UEOKA: So because it's a contract, we felt it cleaner that it may go to someone else one day. I'm
not saying there's anything happening, I'm not trying to go there. But we just wanted it to be
clear that it's Animal Control.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. Now I understand where you're going. Animal Control
definition is like the organization or nonprofit, whatever, versus enforcement, which could be
MPD, right? Is that where you're going with that?
MR. UEOKA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. Anyone else? Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes. I had similar questions, so thank you for getting those
questions answered. I guess my biggest concern is on page, I was on Page 7. And I know,
Ms. Baisa, you guys have worked so hard on it and, you know, so I just, you know, I'm
concerned that it says here under D, and this is under section 6.04.045 right, D. The concern I
had, and again if somebody can correct me, it says notification of the humane society within
24 hours after an owner knows or reasonably should know that -- 25 -
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Point of order, Madam Chair. Sorry, Mr. Victorino. That's a deleted
section. That whole section is deleted.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. If you look...
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: It's in brackets.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It's in brackets from page, the top of Page 6 to the end of Page 8.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay. Excuse me. Okay. This is so confusing, but that's
okay.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. Thank you for bringing that to my attention. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'm sorry about that, Madam Chair. It's a confusing document,
but I understand.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. Any further comments or questions or further discussions? Yes,
Chair Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, it would, it appears that there is a minimal of discussion. Are you
open to my moving to make the amendment?
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Yes, I am.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh. He still has questions.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, thank you, Madam Chair. On Page 15, section 13, the removing
of a required veterinarian. Is there a reason for that?
MR. UEOKA: If I may, Chair.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Yes, Mr. Ueoka.
MR. UEOKA: I think the Animal Control Board has had a very difficult time, having a veterinarian sit
on the Board. Historically, they have had members that are a veterinarian, but it's not always an
easy spot to fill.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. I'm fine with that as long as the Department has no concerns
over, you know, if a veterinarian probably can have a little bit more ability to determine some of
these things I don't know.
MR. UEOKA: If I may, Chair.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Yes.
MR. UEOKA: I was part of the discussions and the meetings with Mrs. Baisa and the Humane Society
representatives, along with the other interested parties. All concurred that for these types of
propensities are, you know, looking at it, a veterinarian may not necessarily have more insight as
to a member of the public who's well informed on the topics. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Madam Chair.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Yes, Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Now I think if I go from Page 9, that's all inclusive, right? That's
not being deleted? Right, Mr. Couch? Okay. Just so that I don't get the same problem twice in
the same day. Okay. The one that hit me right away was number one under again, this is
Section 6.04.046, Page 9 at the bottom, A. Animal Control shall at all times have a record of an
address of real property for where the dog is kept. Off the top, I understand what they're saying.
So if someone dog sits for somebody, and they bring the animal to somebody else's property, it's
deemed the owner or the property for where that dog is kept, not for where the dog is, I guess for
lack of a lesser term, temporarily kept, yeah? You know, because I mean, this happens. People
dog sit.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Mr. Ueoka.
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. Mr. Victorino, I understand your concern. Just so we're clear, these
regulations only talk about dogs that have been deemed dangerous already. Dangerous dogs
have certain conditions placed on their keeping and holding of them, like there are certain
restraints that must be, you have to have like an enclosed kennel, that type of thing And I
believe that's why this language is in here. It's not new language, it was existing in the old
section, but it's just because the Animal Control Officers have to be able to know where the
dangerous dog is, and I believe they do periodic checks to make sure that the conditions of
restraint are met.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And if someone was to dog sit a dangerous animal unknowingly,
you know, the owner doesn't say anything, says eh, Mr. Ueoka, take care of my dog. And you,
nice guy, say okay, you take care of it. I mean, this is not funny because, you know, all of a
sudden you take a dog and you put 'em in another environment, and it's unknown to you, if
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something was to happen, it falls back on the owner, and the property for which it was addressed
under. Is that correct? And when I say addressed under, in other words, that's the address that
dog was put under.
MR. UEOKA: As far as liability, I don't know, but I believe it would be a violation for the owner of the
dangerous dog putting 'ern in a place that's not in compliance with the Code. So it would be the
owner's citation is my understanding.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The owner of the property for which the dog...
MR. UEOKA: The dog, of the dog.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Of the dog, which is registered by the humane society whom
whatever enforcement agency.
MR. UEOKA: Animal Control, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Animal Control. Okay. Thank you. And the next question, and
again it goes under the same thing, but it's on Page 8, the very first line. An Enforcement
Officer or Animal Control Officer, is that the one we talking about "shall" and what does that
mean? Okay. All right, 'cause I had that underlined, too. Okay. I think I have one more, and I
promise that's the end of that story. Wait. Hang on. Look, I have couple more. I went through
this and I had some concerns, Madam Chair, and I'm sorry.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you, no. That's why we have these discussions.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes. This is Page 14, and it is section 6.04.060. And it's actually
the last line which is where, and again I think I got the answer, Animal Control covers anything
and anybody even it's not humane society. You've deleted that, and Animal Control is the
substitute. Is that correct?
MR. UEOKA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So the rest of that would, answers the question for me, and
the last one...all of them will be answered now because I wasn't certain what Animal Control
meant. And now that you've explained it, Mr. Ueoka, I'm good. Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Any further questions or discussion? If not...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Yes, Mr. Guzman.

HOUSING, HUMAN SERVICES, AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

October 17, 2013

COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I'm sorry. I just wanted to get a clarification on the process, and this
is just to have it in my mind 'cause it's been awhile since I've dealt with this type of case, but the
first prong, in order for an Officer or an Enforcement Officer or a Animal Control Officer would
be to on his or her own, be able to deem the dog dangerous, and then they, under that one
section, it's either, you know, imminent threat, bodily harm, so on and so forth. So after that's
been designated, is there a provision in there that then dictates that the board reviews that
designation? Or does it automatically, it's just designated as dangerous dog, and that's it? I just
wanted to know the process, you know. How is the board, the Animal Board, involved in it, in
the designation?
MR. UEOKA: Chair, if I may. There's the four reasons why a dog would be deemed dangerous.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: By the Officer.
MR. UEOKA: Yes, by the Animal Control Officer, or I guess Law Enforcement Officer. And then it is
the owner's option to either, I guess you could surrender the dog, or you can appeal the
designation of the dog as dangerous, yeah, to the Animal Control Board. However, there's also,
typically when a dog's deemed dangerous, there was some sort of other criminal type court ticket
issued or citation issued, I should say. So you may also have to go deal with the District Court
judge.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Right.
MR. UEOKA: And the District Court judges have their own set of powers under the Hawaii Revised
Statutes. But as far as the County side, typically yes. Your dog's deemed dangerous, and you
may appeal that designation to the Animal Control Board.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. So when you're getting ticketed for the determination of
being, your dog being deemed dangerous by the Officer, you then go to court. I mean, you'll
have a court date set, but in the meantime, you can also appeal that designation with the Animal
Board. So if the Animal Board then reverses the designation, you still have the District Court
case, unless is there provisions in here that says okay, the prosecutor's office will then dismiss
the case once the appeal has been won by the petitioner? Do you understand what I'm saying?
MR. UEOKA: I do, and I will say this. The Animal Control Board may, you know, reverse the
determination. However, their reversal of the determination is not necessarily saying the
underlying incident did not happen. They're just saying, you know, it wasn't, this dog is not of
the nature that we need to deem it dangerous. However, it still might've bit someone. It still
might've caused damage to another animal or something, so I don't think it would be good for us
to say if the Animal Control Board, you know, does not designate the dog dangerous, that we
automatically just throw out the other side, you know, the criminal side, I guess we could call it.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Wow. That's just, to me in my mind, that's just conflicting because
it seems as though it would have to, a better order would be to at least have the Board review the
- 29 -

HOUSING, HUMAN SERVICES, AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

October 17, 2013

designation, make its determination, and then proceed to the court case, not both of them
happening at the same time, because then you'll get a contradiction at some point in time. And
what do we do at that stage? Those are just issues I'm bringing up, Chair, procedurally.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Any further comments on Mr. Guzman's...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, go ahead. I'm alright for now.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: No, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Okay. Any further questions, comments or discussions regarding this item? If
not, I would like to recommend that we entertain a motion to recommend passage on first
reading of the proposed bill and filing of the County Communication.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: So moved, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. There's been moved, and seconded. And I'd like to entertain if we
have any further discussions. Chair Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Mr. Chair, Ms. Chair, I'm sorry. We do mister so much around here.
And I've also been told that it's okay to call us Misters when we're chairing because it refers to
the office, not gender. Anyway, Madam Chair, I would like to propose an amendment and I'd
like to amend on Page 8, Section 6.04.046, Dog regulations — dangerous dogs, A. Dangerous dog
designation, 1. An enforcement or small [sic] Animal Control Officer...or
. Animal Control
Officer may designate--instead of "shall"--a dog as dangerous if the Officer has probable cause
to believe that the dog has committed any of the following. Just changing that "shall" to "may".
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Second.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. So we have a motion to amend Section 6.04.046, the Item 1 to
change "shall" to "may" basically. So I'd like to call on the votes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Wait. Discussion.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Madam Chair. Just a question to Corp. Counsel. Does, on
Page 4, 6.04.040 B, Owners of pet animals shall be subject to penalties, does that conflict a little
bit with that other "shall"? If it doesn't, I'm great. If not, maybe we need to change that, too.
MR. UEOKA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So if it's designated as a dangerous dog, then they shall be fined
regardless.
MR. UEOKA: I think it's the opposite. It's a "may" for dangerous dog designation. B is more the
cruelty to animals type of stuff. 6.04.040 B is cruelty to animals type of stuff.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Any further discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Madam Chair.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Yes, Chair Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I just wanted to say that, you know, I'm not surprised that we have so
much discussion and so much difficulty in trying to understand this. This was a really difficult
bill to deal with, and we had many meetings, and there was so much misunderstanding. And you
know, people look at one thing one way, another person looks at it another. And I really wanna
thank our Corp. Counsel Ueoka. He did a yeoman's job of working with this Committee and
trying to mediate, you know, all the feelings about all of this, and also he did draft after draft
after draft. And I really wanna thank him for working so hard on this. This was not an easy
thing to put forward. Thank you.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. Any further questions, discussions? Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair Just a question for Corporation Counsel. On
Page 8, and we're still dealing with Ms. Baisa's motion for the "may", if we change the "shall"
to the "may", does that then, on the next page, on Page 9 on letter C. I mentioned this during
testimony. While.. .and I'm gonna read it, section C. While off the owner's property, behave in
a manner that a reasonable person would believe poses an imminent threat of bodily injury to one
or more persons. By adding the "may", is that giving enough latitude to the Animal Control
Officer to look at the totality of the facts, and not consider just one act, one incident, but look at
it as a continuous acts? Because this could just be one brief incident wherein you're gonna deem
a dog dangerous and subject that dog basically like a sex offender for a human being, put a
muzzle on them, be monitored. Go get insurance on that dog just on a potential of it, you know,
making or making that first move to look like it's gonna hurt somebody, but it may or may not.
It just may look like it's going to. That's the imminent threat. You know, like is it or is it not
gonna do it? Is it gonna hurt somebody or is it not? That's what that section is saying. It's not
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for sure. It's not a bite. It's really a is this gonna happen situation. So I would say that does by
changing the "shall" to "may", does that give the Animal Control Officer to look at continuous
acts, you know, instead of a one-time incident? Because this could be read very strictly, and it
could be...
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Mr. Ueoka.
MR. UEOKA: Yes. It gives enough latitude to the Animal Control Officers.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Good enough.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Okay. Any further discussions? If not, I'd like to call on a vote for the amended
motion. All those in favor?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We're voting on the amendment?
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Yes, we're voting on the amend...on the amended motion to revise
Section 6.04.046. So do I hear...one, two, three...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes, Madam Chair
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Ask for noes.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Any noes? Thank you. All those in favor then we have...one, two, three, four,
five, six, seven, eight.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Seven, ma'am.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Seven. Okay. Thank you. Motion carried.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Crivello, Vice-Chair Cochran, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Carroll, Couch, Guzman, and Victorino.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVED AMENDMENT.

CHAIR CRIVELLO: So now we go back to the main motion. All those in favor of the main motion -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: As amended.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: --as amended, all those in favor, say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Opposed? Thank you. Motion carried.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair Crivello, Vice-Chair Cochran, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Carroll, Couch, Guzman, and Victorino.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending FIRST READING of revised bill and
FILING of communication.

CHAIR CRIVELLO: We will now take a brief recess. Thank you, Mr. Ueoka.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Madam Chair, before you adjourn, I'd like to thank the Members very
much for their consideration. This means a lot to the animal lover community. Thank you.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: And thank you, Chair Balsa, for all of your hard work. So we're gonna take a
brief recess. We should be back in our seats before 10:45. Thank you. . . . (gavel). . .
RECESS:

10:37 a.m.

RECONVENE: 10:50 a.m.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: . . . (gavel). . . I'd like to reconvene our meeting of the Housing, Human Services,
and Transportation Committee as we now come back to order. It is 10:50. We are on Item No.
HHT-13, Grants Management Process. The Committee is in receipt of County Communication
13-299, from Councilmember Donald G. Couch, Jr., relating to the review of the Grants
Management Process. My intention today is to focus on the grant process within the Department
of Housing and Human Concerns as referenced in Councilmember Couch's communication. It is
understood that other administrative offices in the County also administer grants, but those
offices are overseen by other Council Committees, and I would like to limit our discussion to the
Department of Housing and Human Concerns. At this time, I'd like to allow the Department of
Housing and Human Concerns to make comments, if any.
ITEM NO. 13: GRANTS MANAGEMENT PROCESS (CC 13-299)
MS. SHISHIDO: Thank you, Chair Crivello, and again good morning Council members. It is, I thank
Councilmember Victorino for being able to have, or Council Chair, to be able to move the
calendar over so that we would begin to talk with this particular, this particular HHT-13, I'm
sorry, yes. And it is with great pleasure that I have Rudy Esquer, our Grants Manager, who is
more than happy to give you some perspective of possibly some historical and information as
well as moving forward as Grants Management, and Grants, as we see it, might be changing in
the near future, so.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. So right now you're, to further our discussion, is to give us an
overview of your granting process within your Department.
MR. ESQUER: Thank you, everybody. I wanna thank Mr. Victorino first for bringing that topic up
earlier and then helping us to move this to this part of the agenda. I think once we get through
with the discussion today, hopefully you'll be a little more crystal clear what's happening with
this particular agenda item, the SPCA Grant for this year. And I think you'll be more informed,
and I think you'll have a different perspective. If you bear with me, I'd like to just go, maybe a
little bit of a history on the way that the Grant Management Division came about and some of the
topics that we have thought had been important for a lot, a number of years. When I first started
in 1993, I started in the Housing Division as a homeless programs coordinator. And that allowed
me to put together the homeless program for the Department, which required doing grants and
issuing grants for new homeless programs. And that's pretty much, since my background had
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been in grants on the mainland, it was something that I was familiar with. So the Department
liked the process that I came up with for working with grants and bringing agencies together
under funded programs and asked me to put together, if possible, a Grants Management Division
for the Department. And the initial plan back then, it was actually was in 1996, was to put
together a Grant Management Division, then that could be replicated and turned into a Grant
Management Department down the road. That was the discussion at the time, because it is a
pretty big subject typically if you look at grants Countywide. In 1998, '99, there was a lot of, of
course putting together a Grant Management Division caused a lot of stir in the community, in
the nonprofit community to come together to have some sort of viable process for how they
apply for grants and receive them, and how they were monitored. And in 1998, '99, this, the
Council put together a number of, they put together committees to look at the grant management
process. And there's only one Council member here that was there at the time. That's Gladys
Baisa. I was on a committee with her and Charmaine Tavares, which was the head committee
for that group of committees. And we looked at all different aspects of grants and grant process.
That enterprise, I guess you might call it, resulted in a matrix report that the group was compiling
for recommendations for how grants would be administered and how they would be
appropriated. What happened was the Administration changed at that point, and also the Council
membership changed, and it sort of went by the wayside, sort of died on the vine. Although I
happened to hang on to that matrix and just made it available to Sandy Baz beginning of this year
when the discussion came about to talk about retiring the GRC. And he was surprised that I still
held on to that. And as a matter of fact, I used that over 15 years to implement most of the items
that were on that list. Two of the items that are on that list are things that I think still need to be
done and addressed. And one of them, one very important item, was line item appropriations by
the Council and how that affects then, in turn, what we do mechanically in Grants Management
Division. So what happens every year, it's year after year and it's been happening, you know,
for the last almost 20 years, is that every year we get a list of grant appropriations that the
Council makes and we need to get those when the ordinance comes down in July. A lot of times
we don't know anything about them until they actually appear on the ordinance list in July. And
it's invariably somebody comes to my office and comes and knocks on my door and walks in
and takes their hand and says where's my check? I got an appropriation from Council. And it
could be 25,000, 75,000, 150,000, 800,000, 400,000, a million and a half, and there's been no
application, no process. So the first thing I do is I hand them an application and say you have to
fill this out. Now for grants that go through our Department, we have what's called a
preliminary line item application that we put out in November or December every year. And
those applications come in and it tells us who wants what and how much for what. And those
applications are screened by the Director and then a list is made of those agencies. So when you
guys get the list of nonprofit grant requests for the year during your Budget hearings, you know
that the applications that come in through the Department of Housing and Human Concerns have
gone through an application process. Okay. So when those names or those list of agencies
appear on the ordinance, we already have the grant application, for the most part, completed.
And all we have to do is compile the supporting, required supporting documents. And then we
cut the grant agreements and route them. Okay. One of the problems is that we don't get the
ordinance until July, even though we have a list that we compiled for our grants back in April,
March or April. We don't actually get the list until July. So we can't begin the process for
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working up the grant agreements until the first of July, usually it's the second week in July. And
then we notify the agencies of their appropriation and we start to work up the process for issuing
the grant agreements. So one of the problems we have is that these agencies appear with wanting
their grant appropriation and they don't have an application, and they didn't fill out any
paperwork whatsoever. Okay. So that's very problematic for us because we not only do we
have to give them an application at that time, which is late. Then we have to work with them to
try to get the grant, and for new, particularly new agencies, they're not familiar with the grant
application process. And we have to go over that with them. And all of that takes time because
we're working to close the existing year's grants which are, in our case, anywhere from 80 to
100 grants, and we're also opening the new grants that appeared in July. So we're doing those
two things simultaneously. And we're trying to work with these agencies who received a grant
appropriation, and a lot of times, there's no paperwork for it. And we've had to come back on
numerous occasions to the Council members who the agency will say, well the appropriation was
made through such and such Council member, we go back to the Council member, and on
numerous occasions even they don't know the specifics of what the appropriation was for.
Okay. So then we have to go back to the agency and piece together a program plan and a budget.
And that, what that goes to is the fact that there's no application process ahead of time. So when
we put out the preliminary grant application or we put out an RFP, like we do in the case of the
CPG grants, the Community Partnership Grants, we tell the agencies that during the 30-day
preparation period, they can come in and talk to us and see us and discuss their application, all
the supporting documents, their budgets as many times and as often as they want to. And there's
a lot of communication, e-mail, they come and meet with us. And we say, you know, get it all
together as well as possible so that when you do turn it in, it's right. Okay. So most of what we
do, in fact 99.9 percent of it is according to Chapter 3.36, which is the chapter in the County
ordinance that deals with grants. Now I understand that Chapter 3.36 was just changed recently,
and was just put through Committee, and I suppose all of you have it in your binders, and
hopefully you're familiar with it. Okay. Because all of the processes that the Department of
Housing and Human Concerns has been following under grants has fallen under 3.36 for the last
20 years. Now I was in the impression that all of the departments were following 3.36, and
that's not the case. Just this Department. So when 3.36, the amended version, came out this
year, and the Budget Director handed it to me, I said it's not that big a deal for us 'cause we've
been following it all along. And the changes that were made in it were, a lot of the changes were
the changes that we suggested. And I think Sandy Baz did a really good job of making the
revisions to 3.36 so it brings it more in line with good management and reality, I think. So if you
look at certain sections to 3.36, it spells out the things that the agency is supposed to do.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Madam Chair, point of order.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We don't have that, and it's not online yet. It's in the transition. So is
there a possibility that we get a copy of that please before we go much further.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Are we going to retrieve that?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It's not online on the Municode yet, so I don't know where we keep
that.
MR. ESQUER: Well even if you go by the old 3.36, the functions that we have in the Department
stayed the same. So it's basically to put out the availability of grants, to receive grant
applications, to review the grant applications, and to compile all of the required supporting
documents that are spelled out in 3.36. And then to process the grant agreements, then, which
then go through their own process of review and ratification by the different sectors in the
Administration.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Excuse me, Jan, do you have a copy or do you have a copy of the Code with you?
MR. MURAI: Madam my version of the Municode is the amended version. You have it on your
computers. It should be the...what I, what I'm looking at is the current amended version.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: From our website?
MR. MURAI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sorry. I only see revisions in 1983, but maybe I'll double check.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: We're gonna have, okay. We'll continue the discussion and Staff will make us
copies. Thank you.
MR. ESQUER: Okay. So 3.36 is basically our marching orders, it's our bible that we go by. And so
the process that we do for reviewing grant applications follows 3.36 very closely. And the
appropriations for grants that are made by the Council sort of, sort of don't comply with that. So
that's one of the reasons why we have problems in trying to get through the grant appropriations
from Council as opposed to the ones that go through the standard application process.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Any further information, Department?
MS. SHISHIDO: As I'm looking through the binder, I do see that you do have copy of the grant
application. But what I don't see in the grant application, in the binder, is the preliminary line
item grant application, which...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You're talking about...Madam Chair, point of order. You're
talking about HT, HHT-12? Or HHT-13, 'cause HH-13
CHAIR CRIVELLO: We're discussing HHT-13.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's exactly right. And that's why I'm trying to get there.
There's nothing there except Mr. Couch's letter. That's what I'm trying to get a copy please.
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CHAIR CRIVELLO: Just to clarify, our agenda right now is HHT-13.
COLTNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Madam Chair, no problem, because if I have never made a
mistake in a day, I have not done the right thing So that's okay.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Just so that they, our Department heads are understanding on what we're trying to
do. We're trying to have our discussion on the grants management process, nothing in particular
to the HHT-12 yet. We're gonna finish up with HHT-13.
MS. SHISHIDO: Okay. My bad. But I guess it all comes together, it all goes with, you know, when
you talked about 3.36, and you talk about the application, so I'll just continue with Rudy's
historical perspective.
MR. ESQUER: It really is hard to separate, you know, the grant management process from 3.36
because that's what we use to administer it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Understood. Thank you. Madam Chair.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Yes, Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And until we receive that, we're gonna continue the discussion. I
have a couple of quick questions for you. You mentioned number one, that you don't get the list
of awardees until maybe the first or second week of July of the budget year. Okay. So in the
meantime, you did say the repeat or the...what is the word I wanted to use, shucks. I forgot. But
anyhow, those that have been in the system that is a continual, that has been year after year after
year. Those, in April, in March and April, you know what those are because of what had been
put tentatively in the budget request.
MR. ESQUER: Right, because those have gone through the application already.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Process, yeah. So for those, there's no come July, the second
week of July, if you see Boys and Girls Club, just one off the top of my head, right. Boys and
Girls Club, right, I don't know if that falls, no, that doesn't fall...that's Parks and Rec, right?
MR. ESQUER: Pick another one.
COLTNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Pick another one. Okay. I'm trying to think. My brain's
wracking right now.
MR. ESQUER: MEO.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: MEO. Okay. I should've look at Gladys and I should've known
that answer right away. MEO. Okay. So it's, their grant, I mean their application is ongoing,
only supporting documents is needed.
MR. ESQUER: Right. Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But if a new one like the spay and neuter, which had been under
somebody else in the past, now it's been changed to somebody who's new at it.
MR. ESQUER: Right, which by the way, the Maui Humane Society submitted a preliminary application
in November, December and included the SNIP Program in there.
COLTNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Now we didn't know the SNIP was gonna be given to somebody
else until July. Unfortunately, when we were doing Budget session, it seemed like the Humane
Society really didn't think they could do it at the, I guess the price that was put out, or the award,
the grant I should say, was put out. So again it changed. Okay. So putting that aside, so
anybody is coming in new, is there any way you would advise them early on, you know, like
okay, so we pass it, and I guess you get one second reading, and then the Mayor signs it.
Whenever that is done, you don't review anything of that nature, you wait 'til the final document
is sent to you?
MR. ESQUER: I don't understand your question. What is that?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So let's say that the new group took over the SNIP
Program. So obviously they've gotta put in their application. So they're gonna put their
application after July 1 st , when you notify them, or is there a possibility of notifying them before
saying you gotta do all of this?
MR. ESQUER: If they had notified us that they were going to be applying for the SNIP Program in
November, we would've sent them a preliminary line item application. But nobody said
anything. And we didn't know about it until there was discussion during the hearings about it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I'm not blaming you. I'm just trying to figure where we can,
in this whole process, you know, make it more expedient. I mean, we working on permits, we
working on this going, oh, this is another one we need to work on, because some of these groups
have to draw down on credit lines just to survive. And that's interest and other expenditures of
money that they can sorely use somewhere else. And so this is what this is all about, I mean for
this and for my other one, really is to find out what we can do to improve the process, Madam
Chair. And that, I think that, I not saying you're not doing it right. It's how can we improve it
and what will we need to make changes, and even for us in Budget session next year. We maybe
need to tell the...when it's all said and done, write you a letter saying hey, we helped this guy,
that guy or this group, that group, so that you're more aware of it. Or let the groups know, get to
you ASAP.
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MR. ESQUER: This is a perfect time to bring up the issue that came up way back in those committee
meetings that we talked about in '98, '99. One of the key issues was, and one of the things that
we've been recommending for years and years, is it possible to move the grant year from July1 st
to October 1st, which then allows us to between July and October to work up all the grants, and
do all of the grant agreements and get them executed and make the first payment October 1 st • So
there's been discussion with the Budget office recently this year about if it's possible to do that.
Just like it was almost impossible to change 3.36 and retire the GRC. It took 17 years to do that.
It's taken 20 years now, I'm gonna bring out, the first time openly, that we should look at
changing the grant year for grantees from July 1st to October 1 st • So for one year you would have
to allocate one extra quarter of money and then after that it would go year to year to year. But it
would start October 1 st instead of July 1 st 'cause we don't get the list until July. Now if we got
the list in July, and the year started in October, that would give us a quarter to do all of this
footwork. That's one of the recommendations that we made way early back when. So if we're
in a discussion about how you might improve things, that would be a really key way to do it.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: And I would like to thank you. We'll continue this discussion. But you have
disseminated to you is the Code, the Chapter 3.36 as well as the amended ordinance that's before
you. So would you like us to recess for a bit for you to do some speed reading? So why don't
we do that? How many minutes you need, five? Okay. We'll recess for five minutes.
.(gavel). . .
RECESS:

11:15 a.m.

RECONVENE: 11:20 a.m.

CHAIR CRIVELLO: . . . (gavel). . . I'd like to reconvene our department.. .our Housing and Human
Concerns [sic] Committee meeting. So, Members, we've had the opportunity to at least glance
through the Code. And so do we have further discussions and questions in regards to HHT-13,
Grants Management Process? I'll call on Chair Baisa, then Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair And thank you for again for having this
on the agenda. This is a matter that is of serious importance. You know, Maui County puts a lot
of money into grants-in-aid. I think we do better than anybody else. And so for our County, this
is an important issue. And a couple of things that I wanted to discuss in regards to the report or
the update from Mr. Esquer, who has been here from the beginning and worked with me and,
you know, he was on that committee that worked so hard on this with Mayor Tavares. Well, she
wasn't Mayor Tavares then. She was Councilmember Tavares when she was in charge of the
review that went on. And a couple of things that, to me, continue to linger. And one is, and I
know Member Victorino was trying to bring this up earlier, and I think he's on the right track.
One of the things that I think we could do is, you know, we continue to have these line items that
are inserted into the budget while we're working on it. And that's gonna continue to happen
because we want that legislative discretion. You know, we want to be able to add appropriations
to the budget as we go. Maybe we should say that anybody who's gonna do that at the same
time that they're accepting a proposal from an agency, say for instance if agency XYZ came to
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my office and said you know, this is our grant. We really, I mean, this is what we really want.
This is our request. We wanna do this project, whatever. Then at that time, I should inform
them that they should also notify Human Concerns so that the grants people are aware that this is
going to happen. But I think getting all this paperwork in July is not a good idea because it
pushes things back and then there's an overload, because they're not only trying to process the
contracts that are already in the pipeline, but then they get all this new stuff, too. So maybe we
have to work with Grants Management as we, you know, push for our favorite things that we
wanna add. We have to encourage those agencies to work with Human Concerns and give them
information so they'll have some preliminary idea of the documents that they're gonna have to
produce. And it is quite arduous. I don't think we have an application other than the SNIP one
before us. But these applications are very detailed and they require a lot of information about the
board and your insurance and your meetings and minutes and insurance, and all of the things that
you have to get in order to be eligible for a grant to be released to you. So I think we could also
be part of the effort by telling people who come to us, you better get all these documents in line,
and you better go talk to Human Concerns about what you're gonna be asked to do, 'cause if I'm
successful in getting you some money, you better be ready to rock and roll or you're gonna wait
a long time for your money. So I think that's another thing. The other thing is these agencies
that are asking for money also can do due diligence. And they should go to Human Concerns
and find out on their own what is it that we're gonna be asked to produce if we are successful in
getting money, because these things don't happen from one night, one day to another. You
know, we spend Budget, we're in Budget here from end of March until we get through with it,
deciding pretty much at the very, very last week of April who's gonna get what. So all that time
from the end of April until July first, there is sufficient time for people to get their documentation
together. But they have to work with Human Concerns. And it cannot be a surprise that Human
Concerns finds out on July 1 st , and then they expected to, you know, do all this processing and
get the folks their grants. You know, I've been on the receiving side of waiting for grants. And
it's really difficult. You know, in a small nonprofit organization, they don't have the cash flow.
You know, in a big organization, lots and lots of millions of dollars is not a problem because you
have cash flow. But in a small organization where you're $100,000 or even smaller, you don't
have the ability to wait five or six months for a check. And like it was mentioned, you know,
you go to the bank, you borrow money, you borrow on a home equity or any kind of corporate
equity line. And then you pay interest, and that's not a good idea. So I do think, Chair, this is a
serious matter, and we need to come to some kind of resolution about how we're gonna deal with
it because, you know, it's not a good way, and I hate hearing that nonprofits are providing
services and they're not being reimbursed because we can't do without the service obviously.
We want that service, that's why we wanna fund it and we want to do it. So I think we have a
wonderful opportunity here and I think the players are in place to kind of come up with changes
and let's make something happen. I also understand, and Mr. Esquer, you didn't make any
reference to this. How large is the staff of people that deal with this paperwork?
MR. ESQUER: Well when we first started in '96, I had four grant specialists, myself and a fiscal person
and two clerks. Now I have one clerk, one grant specialist and myself That's it.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And how many grants are you responsible for?
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MR. ESQUER: The current year grant is 80. Probably it'll go up between now and the end of the year.
At the first of the year, around July, between July and October, we're handling the old grants
plus the new ones, so you just double it, 150 between two people now.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So in addition to the paperwork that you handle, are you able to make
agency visits or agency reviews in the interim because of the number of folks you're trying to
watch?
MR. ESQUER: We were able to do more agency visits when I had more people. But now it's almost a
drawing straws to see who we go see and when. The ones that are problematic we tend to go see.
So if I had more staff now, I've always advocated that to do a really good job of grants
management, a grants management specialist shouldn't have more than 15 grants. And then they
can go out, they can do the necessary paperwork, and they can go out and monitor the grants, and
they can also assist the agencies in putting together other types of grant situations. So it's a lot
more effective. But when you have one grant specialist, 30, 40, 50 grants, then it's just not
happening, just very counterproductive.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Madam Chair, I think that's another issue too, that, you know, we
haven't really talked about. But, you know, there's a tremendous amount of monitoring and
paperwork that goes on and, you know, when I ran grants, particularly Federal grants, it was
common that they would send regional representatives to visit us on a regular basis, at least
quarterly. And they would come not for the purpose of finding out what we weren't doing, but
to see what we were doing and provide help. You know, maybe you can apply for another grant,
or maybe you can do this better, or in this county they're doing this. Why don't you try that. So
there's this help that field reps provide. And I think we have a problem here that we're too short
staffed in trying to administer too many grants. And that's adding to the problem. Thank you.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: I agree. Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Madam Chair And thank you for bringing this up with my
letter that I submitted to you. I have, and the reason I brought it up is I have a ton of questions.
So I'll just go through a couple and then we'll just kind of see how it goes from there. The first
thing I have is, you know, if you look at Chapter 3.36.020, it says that the agency accepting
applications for a grant or a loan shall adopt rules pursuant to Chapter 91 for, and a list of things
here. And then I'm looking at the general instructions for the budget and for the grant, it's a 49page, the application is a 49-page application. My first question is were there any rules pursuant
to Chapter 91, HRS adopted on this, on these applications and whatnot?
MR. ESQUER: There are administrative rules. There are.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: There are. Do we have a list of those?
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MR. ESQUER: They're on file. They're the same administrative rules that have been in existence
since, I think it was last updated in I can't be sure, but it was quite a while ago.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. ESQUER: But they were according to the old 3.36.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So there was a public hearing on those rules long time ago?
MR. ESQUER: As far as I know. It was before I was here.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Because I see some things in the application, and one of the
things that sticks out like a sore thumb, it says administrative costs cannot exceed 12 percent of
the total proposed grant amount. I don't know that that's been in any rule at any time, that
apparently got added in rather, not rather recently, but in the last what, five, ten years.
MR. ESQUER: Right. The, in 2008, when the bottom of the world fell out, we were given instructions
that apparently came from the Council, came through the Department, that we were to tighten up
on and insure that the grant funds were to be used for direct services as much as possible. So one
of the things that we did was to reduce the allowable admin rate from 15 percent to 12 percent.
Now there were other, there were I'll just say at the time the Finance Director and the Director of
the Department were recommending 8 percent, and I'm the one that said we should make it 12.
So there was definitely instructions to us to reduce the admin to a certain percentage.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. I'd sure like to see those instructions because I...Madam Chair,
you know, there's a list of rules now. There's one more set of things so that we need to kind of
go through. You just look at some of these things. They're some things in here that say
matching funds are not required; however, if you have or are required to have matching funds for
the proposed program, please identify them. Why do we need to know that? Other thing, other
resources, sources of the entire agency funding, why are these things required when, or where are
they required in either ordinance or list? There's a really small list of things that the ordinance
requires, and this application just seems way too big for what is required in the ordinance And
then going on to the reporting, the next thing is, you know, there's only certain things that are
required to be reported, but yet agencies are required to do some extensive reporting to the point
that some of the agencies have to hire full time accountants just to handle the County reporting,
especially if they get multi, funding from different entities, so. I have a ton of questions. Now
I'd like to see the rules that are online so, you know, we only have a short amount of time left, so
I don't know where, how you wanna go from this. But this...
CHAIR CRIVELLO: At this point, as I'm listening, I'd like to defer but, you know, because, and
perhaps allow the Committee to submit questions that, or concerns. And then we can bring it
back at another time with our response. But any further comments or questions? Chair Baisa.
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COLTNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair. One more issue I wanted to follow up on, and that
was Mr. Esquer's suggestion about the October grant date. You know, we've talked about that
for a very long time. In fact, there's always been discussion about possibly changing the County
fiscal year so that we would change it from July to October. Advantage for that would be that
while the State and State funding process is going on, ours would not be going on
simultaneously. The problem with us is that while they're doing budget, we're doing budget,
and it's kind of crazy to be in two places at one time. And if we change our fiscal year to
October first, then they would be pau and we could concentrate on ours knowing what the
Legislature had done. But that's another issue. But as far as grants, I still think that might be a
really good way to solve this because if we didn't make the date July 1 st when the budget goes
into effect, and we went back to October, that would mean funding one extra quarter. And
that's, would only happen one time. Then everybody would not be so stressed, and this would
take a lot of the problems away. It would be a real quick broad-based way of doing, solving a lot
of the problems. But I think that it would be important that we hear from Budget officer. I don't
know if he left. Or Finance, anybody who's around that could, you know, give us advice about
what that would mean financially.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: I think he just stepped out to respond to a phone call.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. But I think it would be important to hear from him
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Okay. Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Along that same line, as long as we're there, is Corp. Counsel, can
they weigh in on this too, because of the timing of issues that, you know, we'd be telling one at
least a different Council, when a different Council comes in, we'll have been telling them for
about a quarter what to do. So I'm not quite sure if we can do that legally. I would love to do it.
I think it's a great idea. It's been going around for years, that idea. So just wondering if that is
feasible and legal.
MR. MURAI: I'm sorry, Mr. Couch. What you're asking is if we do go into an October to October
funding year, whether that might infringe on a successor Council's...?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Successor Council's A and B, the Budget ordinance itself.
MR. MURAI: I don't know, to tell you the truth. But, you know, this is, maybe Sandy might be better
able to answer that question. I defer to Mr. Baz if he does.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Just a moment, Mr. Baz. I see Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, before you start answering that question, I guess my other
question to tack on right down is the fact that is there any organization that gets their grants on
October first? Okay. 'Cause if there is an organization getting it, then I don't think there's a
major problem. But let me ask that question along with all the other questions that were asked.
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CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Madam Chair. Good morning. Aloha, Members. I guess the easiest way to
answer that is to answer Mr. Victorino's question first. Yes, there is an organization that I was a
part of that received a grant historically from October 1 st of every year, and it just happened to be
that was the original time that they got the grant and that's, it just historically had received that.
It's the ME0 Business Development Center Grant out of OED. That grant is historically
October 1 st through September 30 th • I guess the infringement on Council authorities, I don't, you
know, you'd have to have probably get a real legal opinion on it. But from the way that has been
practiced in the Administration in the past, is that the Council makes an appropriation for that
current fiscal year, and that fiscal year, when the contract is executed or grant agreement is
executed, it may or may not exceed the time period of the fiscal year. There are certain ones that
get no cost extensions, if you wanna call it that, where they're not asking for any additional
money, but they're given more time to provide that activity or something like that. So it has
been a past practice of both of those items. As far as moving the fiscal year, the County's fiscal
year, of course that's a Charter Amendment. And that would be a very difficult situation.
Working with the grants, the State does most of their purchase of service contracts with
nonprofits October 1 st through September 30 th . There is some discussion about the grants being
executed after July 1 st when the nonprofit is providing the activities without a contract, without a
grant agreement. And as a grantee, that was a concern of ours trying to make sure that we get a
contract in place so that we have the authority to, real authority to spend the money and not just a
promise kind of a situation. So, yeah. And I'm here to answer other questions.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. Any other questions or further discussion? Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I have tons, but if other people...
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Okay. Mr. Guzman and then Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair Just some clarifications. On the preliminary line
item applications that you had mentioned, this is for the Department, that you received those
applications in March, correct? March and April.
MR. ESQUER: No. We receive them by January.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh, by January. So okay. And then that's, is that a deadline that's
being made? Because I heard a March and April. What is...earlier?
MR. ESQUER: March and April is when the Council receives the list from the Mayor's office.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh okay. So you actually...
MR. ESQUER: We send it from our Department to the Mayor, from the Mayor to you guys.
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: And there's public notice that you're receiving or there's a deadline
for January?
MR. ESQUER: We send out e-notices to all the agencies that we currently have, and those that have
expressed an interest to us. We send out a notice to them with the application. And I don't
really like to do it over the Christmas holiday, over December, although last year we did, and we
reduced it to a one-page PLI instead of the normal full application, hoping that since we did put
it out a little earlier in December, that would make it a little easier for them. Well, I'm
recommending that we go back to the full application this year because it wasn't enough
information on the one-page PLI. So we'll put that out hopefully in November. Like I said, I
don't like to do it over the holidays, so it either goes in November or in January. I'm not sure
yet.
COLTNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. But historically, preliminary line item applications, the whole
process, is about seven months from January to the time the Budget ordinance is issued in July.
Seven months, right.
MR. ESQUER: Right. So what we do is we put together the preliminary line item applications, give it
to the Director, the Director makes the list, sends it to the Mayor. In the meantime, what we do
between January and March is we get the, we sort of know what agencies are gonna be repeat
ones.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: So on average, about seven months, right. So from the time the
Budget ordinance is issued in July, what is the average amount of time it takes for an
organization to receive the appropriation?
MR. ESQUER: Some are earlier, some are later, depending on what's happening Average probably by
the end of September. Some earlier, some later.
COLTNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: So the whole process is about a ten months process?
MR. ESQUER: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. And then on the other hand, we've got the grants
appropriations by the Council with no application. So you're...okay.
MR. ESQUER: And those are the ones that are problematic for us.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You recognize Mr. Couch first. Go ahead. No, I'll let you go.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Thank you, Madam Chair. You had also
mentioned that you're down to one person that's a manager, right?
MR. ESQUER: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Do you have vacancies for the other ones, or have those EPs...
MR. ESQUER: That, my last grant specialist retired in June. The current one that I have might be
retiring soon, and then I'll also be retiring pretty soon, so it's gonna be down to pretty much zero
pretty soon.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But the question is do you have any vacant positions now?
MR. ESQUER: One.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So you lost, you said you had four -MR. ESQUER: Originally.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --originally, and you actually lost two EPs?
MR. ESQUER: Right. And that was 10 years ago, I'd say.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, 10 years ago.
MR. ESQUER: Yeah, it's been awhile.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Madam Chair, just, you know, this is a huge, because we made
a lot of changes and because there are things going on and because the rules are so old, might I
suggest or just bring up the thought of a short, and I really mean short task force to come of
people who are affected by this and people who have to administer this to get together, come up
with another set of rules and go through the whole HRS 91 again to really come together and see
what can be done, what is needed, what isn't needed. Just a thought, not necessarily for today's
meeting, but to put out there.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Right. Thank you. Thank you for the suggestion. I would like to take that into
consideration. Any other...Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Madam Chair. And that was one of my suggestions,
along with the fact that since we know legally it can be done, because it's being done by one
agency now, and so I think if that was improper or illegal or even a Council challenge, you
would've had something come up by now. And I think Mr. Baz, this is many years this has been
going on. That's correct? Over 10 years. So I'm going to go on the assumption that if we were
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to make that change along with the other changes, October 1 st , I can see that. And again,
everybody then knows what needs to be done. They're not inundated with closure and opening
simultaneously. And the closures are almost as difficult as the opening, isn't that correct, Mr.
Esquer? Okay. So with these in mind, I agree. A task force, get these together, and maybe no
later than, no more than three months 'cause you know you no wanna take a long time in getting
something. I like to put a time limit on it, you know. A specific time limit, 90 days, or maybe
120 max, but you know one specific timeframe so we can get this completed and back to us so
that we can make the changes that are necessary to make the process fair, equitable and efficient.
I mean, isn't that what this Administration is all about, Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. Okay. That would be my take on all of this. It also
hurts the group that has come before us because that's part of the whole process. And the only
thing I request from you, Mr. Esquer, is that if you can somehow sit down with them and work
very diligent and to get them, because they, like many other organizations, are putting out
money, performing services, without getting any reimbursement. And I know, they live on a
leap of faith, and a lot of the organizations do. Maui Farm, I can name you about six or seven
that have called me, talking about a leap of faith, you know. And there's no guarantee unless
Mr. Baz has some guarantee he can give us tonight. Oh no. He won't, sorry. You know, but
really, this is important. 'Cause a lot of community services that are provided by our nonprofits
are directly affected, and this has been going on for a long time. So whatever changes we, can be
made that makes it more efficient, fair and expedient, I'll be more than happy to help bring that
along.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: I appreciate it. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Madam Chair
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Mr. Baz, and Rudy.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Madam Chair. You know, that discussion that Ms. Baisa brought up, you know,
the Council definitely has the authority to do the discretionary legislatively appropriated funds,
and that's something that we want to make sure doesn't get affected. And then in the Code, the
3.36, it's very clear about that. What the State does, 'cause they have the same responsibility
and the same authority that they keep within the State Legislature is prior to, or right after the
start of the State session, if you're applying for a grant, you actually have to fill in an application
that the State Legislature does, and you have to submit it to the State Legislature. I'd be very
happy to work with the Department and with the Council on that kind of a process for a Council
legislation as well. So as you start your Budget process after March 25 th , and you start hearing
from the community members who either didn't get grants from the County, the Administration
or others that come out, you'll have the proper tool to be able to gather that information that
we're then gonna require once that grant-in-aid is given.
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CHAIR CRIVELLO: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Esquer.
MR. ESQUER: Kind of just like to make one key point to me, and that's if you look at 3.36.150, it
states that all grants of County funds and County real property are subject to this chapter. So if
we do launch into this committee to discuss how to improve things, I would hope that since this
3.36 applies to all County grants and all departments, that instead of just honing in on Human
Concerns, that that discussion include all of the departments, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I think, Madam Chair, that's our intent. It's not just for one
department. If we're gonna make changes, let's make it right across the board to be fair to
everybody.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. Just for clarification, though, this is dealt with, this grant process has
been dealing with this Committee on that part. Yes, Ms. Cochran?
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Thank you. And that's the Committee we're in, Housing and Human
Concerns. But I'm looking at, in particular, 3.36.120. This is the monitoring and evaluation of
such grants. And so if you had, 'cause you were like saying, and it states item A, agencies shall
monitor every grant to ensure compliance with this chapter. And due to your downsizing in EP
personnel, that you're saying it's just like pulling straws to see and go for more the problematic
ones. But this is saying every, so I mean, are you saying that if you had the, more staff, you'd be
able to cover more ground basically?
MR. ESQUER: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Okay. And, you know, because I'm looking back at grants that do span
many decades that I feel there's been, even back I believe as you state back 10 years ago when
you had full staff, you know, these particular grants were around then. And personally I find,
Chair, that they were not properly monitored and evaluated until today. So I hope to see some
improvements there and if increasing EP is one of them, then that's definitely worth the
discussion and looking into. Changing the date to October, I believe is a worthy discussion also,
Chair. And, you know, for me during Budget session, the unknown of wondering what's gonna
come out of the State Leg for us in dollar amounts such as the TAT is just, you know, it's just
irksome. 'Cause you just don't know, and we're trying to juggle numbers and monies around
when we don't even know what's coming down to us. And we get people asking, so that for me
is the unknown of that and it would be, we can be better prepared to know exactly the dollar
amount and figure that we need to work with. So I am totally in favor of that discussion and
seeing how that can somehow work out. But other than that, Chair, I think this definitely, we
have, this is a huge topic, subject matter as Mr. Couch pointed out and other Members. And so
with that I, you know, very supportive of your deferral.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Madam Chair.
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CHAIR CRIVELLO: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I just wanted clarification from Corp. Counsel. If we were to
work on 3.36, and I think that's what we're discussing as far as Mr. Esquer's grants, right. You
use 3.36, and all the County agencies use 3.36? Other agencies, because you, I'm trying to get
an answer as far as if we work on this and that's what we intend to do, and I hope that's what
Madam Chair has, and I'm speaking ahead of the, putting the cart before the horse, but 3.36 is
what all the other agencies use for grants and loans or whatever, 'cause that's what this is all
about?
MR. ESQUER: By agencies you mean the organizations or you mean...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Agencies like, for example, Economic Development, other
agencies within the County.
MR. ESQUER: I don't know. I'm not sure. I guess they should or they should have. This revised 3.36
says for the first time that it applies to all the grants for the County.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And that's what I read. So Madam Chair, if I could request a
letter from you on our behalf asking all the various agencies, whether it's OED and other
agencies that do this, Parks and Recreation, I guess there's a bunch of them out there, that falls
under that. If you would on our behalf ask that. Because I think if we work on it, even in this
Committee, it will have an effect in all the other agencies because this is hopefully what is
governing our agencies. I don't know. Maybe Mr. Baz can add some comment to that.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. Mr. Baz.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Madam Chair. As far as my understanding is, most of the other agencies that
are grant managers do follow a similar process to this and most of this 3.36. It is new this year,
of course it just got passed recently. Maybe a suggestion might be to have this Committee refer
to the Policy Committee since 3.36 is still in the Policy Committee, and there's still an additional
item in the Policy Committee related to moving Grants Management to Department of Finance
as well. But those are discussions that, because it is a Countywide issue, that might be the most
relevant Committee. But, you know, Human Concerns, Housing, Transportation happened to be
the largest amount of grants between those three areas. So it does fit that this is coming up in
your Committee as well.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. Thank you for the suggestion. Any other more comments or
discussion on HHT-13? Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. And, you know, Mr. Victorino kind of brought it up as
well. Do you, are you anticipating potentially either requesting PIA to come up with the task
force or are you gonna try and form one yourself? But I think that's something, you know, it's
- 50 -

HOUSING, HUMAN SERVICES, AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

October 17, 2013

time to revisit the whole thing and whether through your Committee or PIA Committee, I'd sure
like to see at least a letter from you asking PIA or you doing it yourself.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: I will take all that into consideration. And with the recommendation that you'll
accept for me to defer this so I can look into it further.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Madam Chair.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Yes sir.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Just for point of clarification, I'd like to ask Corp. Counsel if, let's
say we just HHT and Madam Chair did the work, but we're making changes and if I read it
correctly, it says all County agencies, right. So no matter if we do it here or in PIA, it would
have an effect on all County agencies if we made changes to 3.36?
MR. MURAI: It would.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I just want that clarification, Madam Chair
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you for the clarification. Any further discussions? There being none, if
there's no objection, I'd like to recommend deferral.
COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
ACTION:

DEFER PENDING FURTHER DISCUSSION.

CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. We still have HHT-12 as far as further discussion on the issue on the
Spay/Neuter Incentive Program, regarding Communication 13-298.

ITEM NO. 12: SPAY/NEUTER INCENTIVE PROGRAM (SNIP) (CC 13-298)
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Madam Chair, in light of what we've been discussing, and I think
it's really a challenge, I would also like to ask for deferral and get, you know, I guess the items
kind of coincide, but yet they're a little different. And I'd like to get more information from the
agency itself and Mr. Esquer. So if you don't mind deferring that, I would, I would be.. .
CHAIR CRIVELLO: I don't have if Members, you have no objection, I'd like to recommend deferral.
Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Are we.. .so you're not gonna have any more discussion on this one?
CHAIR CRIVELLO: It's open. I'm sorry. Can have further discussion.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'm okay either way. I just had a couple of questions.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Why don't you pose your questions?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But that's more general. I mean, sorry. Not more general, it's more
specific to this.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Okay. What are your questions?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: For instance, in Mr. Victorino's letter, the agency was asked to have, to
please provide the following additional information on veterinarian vendors to be used, A, what
their detailed surgery breakdown to include general costs for supplies, materials, veterinarian
labor charges, et cetera. I don't see that anywhere in any Code or anything like that, why that
was required, and so I wanted to find out if that's required, was that required of the previous
applicant, and if so, can we see their response to that?
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Do you have a reply for that?
MR. ES QUER: If you look in Chapter 3.36, and it deals with, if I can find it here, talks about the items
that are required for the application and one of the items that it talks about is financial records. It
says reports by recipients or in the application itself. It states that, it says that, this is 3.36.070,
and also under 3.36.050, conditions for grants or loans, it talks about an applicant for County
funds shall complete an application which shall be reviewed and verified by agency personnel.
Public purposes, objectives to be achieved, activities to be performed and compensation plans,
which are budgets. So what we require of everybody, absolutely everybody is to a detailed
breakdown on cost itemization for the budget. And in the case of the SPCA, they requested
$75,000 for the SNIP Program, and I asked them what does that 75,000 entail, like we do
everybody to break it down in terms of costs.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Actually, to correct Mr. Esquer, we requested the $75,000 to be
handed. They did not request it, we requested that they get it. Now that, there's a huge
difference in that, Madam Chair, in my opinion.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you.
MR. ESQUER: Okay. Shall I continue?
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Yes.
MR. ESQUER: Okay. So part of our normal process is to require a budget and the budget breakdown
for any portion of the budget is itemized. So for this particular grant, we were asking what the
75,000 would be for. And whether it was for vouchers only, and with the amount of surgeries
that was estimated, I believe it was 2,600, at $28 apiece, left a little less than 3,000 over. So I
was asking what the 3,000 covered and if it did cover something other than the vouchers, would
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that be medical supplies, it would be bandages, shots, whatever. And so that's what that question
was about.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Detailed surgeries breakdown to include general costs for supplies,
materials and veterinarian labor charges. Is it on the veterinarian vendors you're asking that for?
I'm not quite sure.
MR. ESQUER: No. I was asking that of the agency. It's in the agency budget.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Yeah. Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And again, that, and I didn't want to get into this discussion but
since you brought up the question, exactly what the problem has become is that they feel like if
they've gotta ask every one of their veterinarians, because the voucher program as has been done
in the past is that the person walks in and says I'm going to spay or neuter my adult dog. Okay.
And that's $25. And the voucher was for $25 and they choose whoever the veterinarian that
would A, accept it and B, do it. Okay. Acceptance and doing it. And so they walk in and if it
was $45, the difference was out of their pocket. Okay. So they felt that this was a requirement
for each veterinarian and there are a number of numerous veterinarians they use, to report their
financial statements to them, which many of them, first of all they're private businesses, and
secondly, that's a lot of extra work for them to do. And that's their whole take on this. That was
their first real challenge is, you know, they were under the impression, and they said if we're
wrong, then tell us we're wrong, that they had to provide, or each veterinarian had to provide
financial information to you.
MR. ESQUER: Can I answer that?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'm looking for clarification.
MR. ESQUER: I'm waiting to answer this.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you.
MR. ESQUER: Item number one is that we require that of everybody. First of all, we require that they
spell out what the costs are gonna be for in that budget. Take for example, I'll just back up, take
for example, recently we had a break in the waters in the sewer system at one of our agencies.
And they requested money to cover that, which we, the Department, granted to them. In the
repair of that system, it required them to hire somebody to do it, and for that person to purchase
supplies to do the work. So there was the supplies and the labor involved in that. So we asked
them to itemize that which is standard what we do with everybody. So in the case of the SPCA,
it's the same thing. We asked them to itemize what the vendors, what the veterinarians were
charging them that would be charged to the grant.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So, again just to make it perfectly clear, Madam Chair, in
other words, if veterinarian A, myself, charges $45 and I get reimbursed $25, I say it costs me
$45. One hour is $30, whatever, God forgive, whatever tools are needed and deals with the
program, I give you a cost breakdown. That's all you asking of them?
MR. ESQUER: All I asked of the agency was a summation of what that, what those amounts would be.
If since they itemized 75,000 for the budget for spay/neuter surgeries, what does that entail?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We give these vouchers to the public. And the public chooses
who they go to, and they'll pay the difference, whatever it might be. So how do you ascertain
that when I might go Ms. Shishido, or I might go to Ms. Crivello, but they not on my list?
MR. ESQUER: The money goes to the agency, not to the person.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: They give the $25 voucher to the person.
MR. ESQUER: The agency does.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The agency does. That is correct. Right, so they walk into a,
what do you call that, a veterinarian and says I like my dog or whatever, adult dog for $25.
That's what you gonna get reimbursed. So they give that and the guy says okay, but it costs $45.
Do you want them to send you the bill to show...
MR. ESQUER: No, no. Just what the agency spends that's gonna be attributed to the grant. And by the
way, a spay/neuter surgery costs more than $45.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, I realize that. But I mean again that's the limitation on our
vouchers, on the vouchers as you were...
MR. ESQUER: Twenty-eight to fifty is what they told us
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So, 'cause I think they're misunderstanding this and maybe
that's where the problem is, and maybe you ought to sit down with them and they just need to sit
down. I'm putting it out there that I'm trying to get something clear on the record that I'm not
blaming anybody, but let's get it right. And maybe after awhile they'll get it right, and you'll get
it right, and we'll all be happy.
MR. ESQUER: Yeah, see we're not really picking on 'ern. We're just asking the same things we ask
everybody. But part of the problem is that they're a brand new agency that never worked with us
before and we never saw them before July 1 st .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Madam Chair, I rest my case.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Couch, you had your hands up?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just in this case, if a veterinarian decides to say I'll take the $28, the
$35 voucher, but it's costing me $75, why do they need to supply a general cost for supplies,
materials and labor charges. It's up to me as a veterinarian, I'm fine. I'm donating the other $45
or whatever the price is. We shouldn't be pointed. Just, these are some of the things that several
other entities have had to go through as well and I guess it all goes back to our previous
discussion, was get a group together and find out what is really required, come to Council and
they say is this okay for a list of requirements. So I mean we can go on and on, on this one thing
so.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Right. So I believe we should move on with our intention.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. Thanks
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Mr. White, did you have any? Okay. So no further discussion and if there are no
objections, I'd like to recommend deferral of this item.

COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
ACTION:

(Excused: GCB)

DEFER PENDING FURTHER DISCUSSION.

CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Madam Chair
CHAIR CRIVELLO: And if there's no objection, I'd like to adjourn this meeting.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No objection, Madam Chair
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: No objections.
CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. .. . (gavel). . .

ADJOURN: 12:04 p.m.
APPROVF

ST CY CRIVELLO, CHAIR
Housing, Human Services, and Transportation
Committee
Transcribed by: Amanda Kaili
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